


G. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. To investigate charges of criminal misconduct — GL ¢. 149 sec 52C and ¢.66 sec. 15

H. NOTES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Selectmen is Monday, May 10, 2021 at
6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Banquet Room.

ADJOURNMENT

Subject matter listed in the agenda consists of those items that are reasonable anticipated (by the Chair)
to be discussed. Not all items listed may be discussed and other items not listed (such as wrgent business
not available at the time of posting) may also be brought up for discussion in accordance with applicable
lenw.

MGL, Ch. 30a, § 20(f) requires anyone that intends to record any portions of a public meeting, either by
audio or video, or both, fo notify the Chair at the beginning of the meeting.
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Fairhaven Board of Selectmen
Meeting Minutes
April 12, 2021

Present: Chairman Daniel Freitas, Vice-Chairman Robert Espindola, Selectman Keith Silvia, Town
Interim Administrator Wendy Graves and Cable Access Director Derek Frates

Present via Zoom: Administrative Assistant Vicki Oliveira and Production Coordinator Erick Sa.
Also present: Rogers Reuse committee Chair Sue Loo and Bell Committee Chair Doug Brady
The meeting was videotaped on Cable Access and Zoom meeting application.

Chairman Freitas opened the meeting at 6:31 pm in the Town Hall Banquet Room and read the following
statement:

“This Open Meeting of the Fairhaven Board of Selectmen is being conducted remotely consistent with
Governor Baker’s Executive Order of March 12, 2020, due to the current State of Emergency in the
Commonwealth due to the outbreak of the “COVID-19 Virus.”

In order to mitigate the transmission of the COVID-19 Virus, we have been advised and directed by the
Commonwealth to suspend public gatherings, and as such, the Governor’s Order suspends the requirement
of the Open Meeting Law to have all meetings in a publicly accessible physical location. Further, all
members of public bodies are allowed and encouraged to participate remotely.

The Order, which you can find posted with agenda materials for this meeting allows public bodies to meet
entirely remotely so long as reasonable public access is afforded so that the public can follow along with
the deliberations of the meeting.

Ensuring public access does not ensure public participation unless such participation is required by law.
This meeting will allow public comment related to the posted agenda items only. For this meeting,
Fairhaven Board of Selectmen is convening by telephone conference/video conference via Zoom App as
posted on the Town’s Website identifying how the public may join.

At 6:35 pm the Board recessed to the Auditorium

Appointment of Fire Chief

Town Clerk Carolyn Hurley swore in the new Fairhaven Fire Chief Todd Correia before a small gathering
of family, friends and members of the Fairhaven Fire and Police Departments.

Chief Correia thanked the group and the Selectmen for their support.
At 6:45 pm the Board returned to the Banquet Room
Minutes

Mr. Espindola made a motion to Approve minutes of March 1, 2021— Open Session. Mr. Silvia seconded.
Vote was unanimous. (3-0)


vicki
Typewritten Text
A1


Mr. Espindola made a motion to Approve minutes of March 8, 2021— Open Session. Mr. Silvia seconded.
Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to Approve minutes of March 11, 2021— Open Session. Mr. Silvia
seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to Approve minutes of March 22, 2021— Open Session. Mr. Silvia
seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Town administrator’s report

Ms. Graves told the Board that she recently had a meeting with Cook and Company regarding the new
rates for FY22, and she hopes to have the new rates by the next meeting.

Ms. Graves told board that she met with members of the Rogers Reuse Committee regarding a possible
tenant for the newer section at Rogers school.

Ms. Graves told the Board Mind Set Go will be holding 2 training seminars tomorrow with Town staff.

Ms. Graves told the board that there will be clean up day at Rogers school on Saturday, April 17, 2021,
they are looking for volunteers to help clean the school grounds.

Committee liaison reports

Mr. Espindola said he had a Zoom meeting with Ms. Graves and Town Accountant Anne Carreiro with
Elevation Retail regarding the host agreement which is currently out for review with department heads.

Mr. Espindola send Broadband Study committee will be hosting another webinar to work with Entry
point to be presented at town meeting. The Committee will also be presenting a short video at Town
Meeting.

Mr. Espindola said there are Federal Stimulus funds that are available for infrastructure projects for
Broadband development, Mr. Espindola would like to see the Town benefit from this.

Mr. Espindola said the Marine Resources Committee met to discuss the waterway rules and regulations,
but also had questions regarding the Union wharf land swap.

Planning Director Paul Foley will update the Board regarding the one stop growth program. This is a
program that helps towns with grants and will hold training sessions for the Planning Boards and the
Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mr. Silvia said the ADA ramp project at the Academy Building is progressing.

Mr. Silvia said he liked an idea that Board of Selectman’s candidate Lisa Plante had regarding office
hours for each precinct. The Board discussed ideas for possibly doing something on this idea.

Mr. Freitas met with the Bristol County Commissioners.

Reorganization of Board of Selectmen

Chairman Freitas handed the gavel over to Ms. Graves. Ms. Graves asked for nominations for the position
of Chairman of the Board of Selectmen.

Mr. Silvia made a motion to nominate Mr. Freitas for the position of Chairman. Mr. Freitas seconded.
Vote passed (2-1)



Mr. Silvia made a motion to nominate Mr. Espindola for the position of vice chairman. Mr. Freitas
seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Freitas made a motion to nominate Mr. Silvia for the position of Clerk. Mr. Espindola seconded. (3-
0)

Ms. Graves handed the gavel back to Mr. Freitas.

Board Liaison Appointments

Mr. Freitas read the listing of the Board liaisons. Board members were happy with their current positions.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the liaison positions as read by Mr. Freitas. Mr. Silvia seconded.
(3-0)

Revere Bell location

Doug Brady chairman of the Bell committee met with the Board to present them the designs for the
housing of the restored Oxford school Revere Bell that will sit on the front lawn of town hall. Mr. Brady
said all the designs were done by students (Attachment A). The first design, by Chase Crowely a
Fairhaven High school student had the same base but 3 different roof options. The second design was
created by Vocational students Benjamin Farland, Cody Raposa and Christopher Pereira and represents
the cupola that the bell was originally housed in atop the roof at Oxford school. Mr. Brady said the
Historical Commission chose the cupola as their choice but loved all the designs. The Board liked the
idea of the cupola because they felt it best represented where the bell came from.

Mr. Espindola made a motion for the cupola design as their choice. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was
unanimous. (3-0)

Setting 2nd Half of 2021 Board of Selectmen meeting calendar

The Board meeting reviewed dates for the second half of calendar 2021. Mr. Espindola suggested
changing the date of the already scheduled May 24,2021 meeting to another date due to a conflict. The
dates reviewed were as follows:

Monday, July 12, 2021
Monday, July 26, 2021
Monday, August 9, 2021
Monday, August 23, 2021
Monday, September 13, 2021
Monday, September 27, 2021
Tuesday, October 12, 2021
Monday, October 25, 2021
Monday, November 8, 2021
Monday, November 22, 2021
Monday, December 6, 2021
Monday, December 20, 2021

Mr. Espindola made a motion to change the date of the May 24, 2021 meeting to June 1, 2021. Mr. Silvia
seconded. Vote was unanimous (3-0)



Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve the second half of calendar 2021 schedule. Mr. Silvia seconded.
Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Millicent Library Trustees Resignation and Appointment

Mr. Freitas read a letter from Library Director Kyle DeCicco-Carey requesting to add Kathryn Powers to
the Library Board of Trustees and to accept the resignation of Lisa Wright.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the resignation of Lisa Wright. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was
unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to appoint Kathryn Powers to the Library Board of Trustees. Mr. Silvia
seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Rogers Reuse Committee - Disclosure by Non- Elected Municipal Employee of Financial Interest: -
Sue Loo

Mr. Freitas said that Rogers Reuse Committee Chairperson Sue Loo has submitted a disclosure by Non-
elected municipal employee of financial interest. Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve disclosure by
Non- elected municipal employee of financial interest for Sue Loo. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was
unanimous. (3-0)

Rogers Reuse Committee- mission statement

Mr. Freitas read the mission statement that was submitted by the Rogers Reuse Committee (Attachment
B). Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the mission statement and to place on file and on the Town
webpage. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Rogers Reuse Committee-discuss possible lease of new section

Rogers Reuse Committee Chairperson Sue Loo updated the Board regarding a potential tenant for Rogers
School. Ms. Loo told the Board that Southeastern Massachusetts Educational Collaborative (SMEC) has
been searching for extra space to expand their program and recently approached the Rogers Reuse
Committee about the addition part of the Rogers School. This portion is handicap accessible and there is
ample parking for their vehicles. SMEC would like to be in the building by September 2021 and will help
pay for parts of the improvements to the building. Ms. Graves told the Board she and Selectman Silvia
will begin negotiations with SMEC. Mr. Espindola suggested that a timeline be created.

The Board discussed the process and the possible future of Rogers School.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to allow for Ms. Graves and Mr. Silvia to participate in negotiations with
SMEC to use the 1950’s addition Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to have Sue Loo represent the Rogers Reuse Committee and to participate
in the negotiations. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Acceptance of land donation

Mr. Freitas read a memo from Conservation Agent Whitney McClees (Attachment C) regarding 2 parcels
of land that have been accepted by the Conservation Commission for donation to the Town.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the land donation for Nonquitt Avenue. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote
was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the land donation for Tanner Lane. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was
unanimous. (3-0)



Tax Possession Auction- RFP award: Zekos Group

Ms. Graves told the Board that she has awarded a recent Request for Proposal (RFP)for tax title to the
Zekos Group. (Attachment D).

Tax Title properties

Mr. Freitas read the list of foreclosed Tax title properties that will be auctioned off by the Town in the
near future (Attachment E). Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the auction list for the properties as
presented. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Appoint Tax Title Custodian- Wendy Graves

Ms. Graves told the Board that she will need to be appointed the tax title custodian in order to auction off
the foreclosed properties that have been taken for tax title.

Mr. Espindola made a motion that as provided under MGL Chapter 60, Section 77B, Robert Espindola,
hereby move to appoint Wendy Graves, Town Treasurer, as Tax Possession Custodian who shall have the
care, custody, management and control of all property acquired by foreclosure, deed in-lieu of foreclosure
or by treasurer’s deed for unpaid taxes. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Extension of loan agreement for “The Adventurer”

Ms. Graves told the Board this is an extension of the agreement that was signed in 2020 for the
“Adventurer” model ship that is on loan to the Rosenbach Library of Philadelphia. Mr. Espindola made a
motion to approve the revised loan date for the Manjiro exhibit from January 20, 2020 to September 30,
2021. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Elevation Retail- Host Agreement

Ms. Graves updated to the Board that the Host Community Agreement for Elevation Retail is now out for
various Department Heads to review.

Deterra farmland: Notice of removal from 61A status

Ms. Graves told the Board the Town has received notice that the Deterra farm has filed for 61 A to remove
the land from farmland and the Town has the right of first refusal. Mr. Espindola asked if all the Town
Departments have had a chance to review this. Ms. Graves will send notice out to Town Departments.

Public Meeting Recommendation from Health Agent

Mr. Freitas read a memo from Health Agent Dave Flaherty regarding his recommendations for public
meetings during COVID (Attachment F). Mr. Espindola had concerns that the town Should be following
the State guidelines. Discussion followed regarding having members of the public in the meeting room
and the amount of people that can safely be in attendance. Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the
recommendations from the Town health Agent. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Review/Vote Budgets

Ms. Graves reviewed the budgets with the Board.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve the FY22 Water Enterprise and Capital Budget. Mr. Silvia
seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve the FY22 Water Capital Budget for the Akin Street water meter
replacement for $150,000. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)



Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve the FY22 Sewer Enterprise Fund. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote
was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve the FY22 Sewer Capital Budget in the amount of $670,000 from
retained earnings for:

Inflow and Infiltration Reduction project- $250000
Pump Station Improvements- $270,000

Blower Building Roof- $75,000

Truck w/plow- $75,000

Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to FY22 Town Cable Enterprise Budget of $246,035 using $49,587 from
retained earnings. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve t the FY22 School Cable Enterprise Budget of $212,407 using
$58,055 from retained earnings. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve the FY22 General Fund Capital Plan for:

SCBA Replacement -$491,800

ACO Replacement Truck-$51,479

Police Cruiser Replacements-$120,500
Harbormaster/Shellfish Warden Truck Replacement- $50,300
Computer Hardware Equipment Replacement -$30,000

Fire Engine (Replaces Engine 2)- $625,000

Plotter Scanner- $20,000

Dashboard Cameras-$69,000

Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Review of Articles for the June 12, 2021 Annual Town Meeting

Ms. Graves handed a list of the articles that are on the Annual Town Meeting Warrant. The Board
reviewed the list.

Termination letter from Town Administrator Screening Committee

Mr. Freitas read a letter from the Town Administrator Screening Committee stating that they have
fulfilled their task.

Resignation from Bikeway Committee- Mat Coes

Mr. Freitas read the resignation letter from Mat Coes on the Bikeway Committee.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to accept the resignation of Mat Coes on the bikeway committee. Mr. Silvia
seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Mpr. Silvia had to recuse himself for this item and left the room at 8:15 pm

Discuss the Town Administrator Screening Process

Mr. Espindola expressed his concerns over the Town Administrator search process and stated that the
Board has been addressing this issue for over a month and members of the community are concerned with



the process that took place. Mr. Freitas would like to have the resident letters placed on the webpage. Mr.
Freitas expressed that Ms. Graves is doing a good job as the interim Town Administrator.

Discussion ensued regarding the process that has taken place and the concerns of the town residents. Mr.
Espindola stated he would like to work together to hire a new Town Administrator.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to start the Town Administrator search process over and to agree to the
following process:

1. Obtain quotes from Community Paradigm Services and The Collins Center to conduct the Job Search
process again, utilizing the same Position Statement Drafted in the original process. The Board of
Selectmen meet to select the firm to coordinate the search process.

2. Recruit seven (7) volunteers to participate in the process using the following procedure:

a. Three (3) Committee members will be advanced to the Screening Committee from the same three
committees / boards who did so the first time, the School Committee, Finance Committee and the
Planning Board. Each committee will meet, nominate and vote for their representative. This would be the
same process used last time.

b. Two (2) Committee members will be advanced by the two Selectman qualified to vote on the TA
appointment, with each Selectman nominating their choice with the qualification that Selectmen shall be
prohibited from serving on the Committee.

¢. One (1) Committee member shall be the Town Moderator and the Town Moderator shall also serve as
the Chair of the Town Administrator Search Committee.

d. One (1) Committee member shall be an At-Large Member from the community determined using the
following procedure:

Public notice will be made as soon as the process is agreed to, that the Town is looking for volunteers for
the At-Large Position, allowing 3 working days for community members to submit their letters of interest.
Each Selectman qualified to participate will be presented all letters of interest for At-Large Committee
member and shall rank order the candidates from top preference to the lowest preference and bring that
list to the next Board of Selectmen meeting. The candidate with the highest combined rank, using both
Selectmen lists, will serve on the committee.

The Screening Committee will advance no less than two candidates but no more than four candidates to
the Board of Selectmen for interviews.

If, after conducting interviews of the candidates brought forward by the Screening Committee, the two
Selectmen agree on a candidate to appoint, the process will be considered complete and final background
checks and contract negotiation will commence.

If, after conducting interviews of the candidates brought forward by the Screening Committee, the two
Selectmen each move to appoint a different candidate and those respective motions die without a second,
then the names of the two nominated candidates shall be returned to the Screening Committee and the
Screening Committee shall meet, in Open Session, to recommend one of the two candidates for
appointment to the Board of Selectmen.

Before step one of the process outlined above, both Selectmen shall sign agreement to allow the vote of
the Screening Committee to serve as the tie-breaker such that the candidate recommended by the
Screening Committee will be the one that both Selectmen agree to motion, second and vote in favor of at
the next Board of Selectmen meeting.



There was no second.

Mr. Freitas agreed that the Town should get a quote from other consultants but said that he would not like
to use the Community Paradigm again.

The Town Administrator Screening Committee (TAC) Chairman Bernard Roderick told the Board the
TAC met with the consultant to approve the minutes of their meetings. He said a vote took place and the
minutes were accepted and to also have the consultant send a letter to the Board stating that the Town
Administrator committee has fulfilled their role. Mr. Roderick stated that he is unsure if the executive
session minutes can be released for public disclosure at this time.

Mr. Espindola made a motion to have Ms. Graves solicit bids from consultants to start the search for a
town administrator. Mr. Freitas seconded. Vote passed. (2-0-1)

At 8:36 pm Mr. Silvia returned to the banquet room.

Notes and Announcements
Mr. Espindola read an email from resident Karen Vilandry regarding the Atlas Tack property and he
explained that the Town has done what it can for now with the property.

At 8:37 pm Mr. Espidola made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Silvia seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

Respectfully submitted,

Adietsi 8 _Muwesnso

Vicki L. Oliveira
Administrative Assistant

A. Revere Bell housing designs

. Rogers Reuse mission statement

Memo regarding offer of land donation

Letter from Zekos Group

List of properties for auction

Health Agent Recommendations for Public Meetings during COVID pandemic
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FITNESS IN THE PARK

MEDIA RELEASE
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE April 21, 2021

Celebrating Ten Years of Free Outdoor Fitness Classes

FAIRHAVEN MA- Fitness in Cushman Park is celebrating its tenth anniversary!
After a rough winter indoors, we are looking forward to being outside enjoying
fresh air and exercise in a safe way. The South Coast community can keep fit and
stay healthy with free exercise classes taught by two of the top fitness instructors
in the area. In keeping with safety protocols due to the pandemic, Fitness in
Cushman Park will adhere to the current restrictions that may continue to be in
place this summer. Attendees to Fitness in Cushman Park classes will be
required to wear masks to and from the field and practice social distancing —

keeping a distance of 6 to 8 feet between mats.

Fitness in the Park is scheduled FREE TO THE PUBLIC this summer for 10
weeks of Yoga and Exercise classes in Cushman Park, Green Street Fairhaven
MA. The classes are taking place Tuesdays and Thursdays 8:30am from June 22
to August 26, 2021.

TUESDAYS: Yoga in the Park begins June 22 with certified yoga instructor, Jeff
Costa, E-RYT 200. Yoga in the Park is a yoga series for all levels, designed to
introduce newcomers to the basics of stretching and mindfulness and challenge

yoga enthusiasts with a focus on compassion for the body.

THURSDAYS: Summer Bootcamp, begins June 24 with certified personal trainer
(A.F.P.A.), Wayne Goulart. The Bootcamp class consists of various exercises that
build functional strength and core stability with circuits utilizing light dumbbells

and body weight exercises.

Yoga in Cushman Park’s instructor, Jeff Costa, E-RYT 200 is a Yoga Alliance
Nationally Certified Instructor and a graduate of the Kripalu School of Yoga and
Health. Cofounder of Sangha New Bedford (sanghanewbedford.com), Jeff is a
recognized leader in the wellness industry and has over 30 years experience in
fitness education with a BA in Liberal Arts from Boston University. The strength
of Jeff’s teaching lies in his attention to detail and his compassionate approach to

students' needs. Jeff's authentic voice and classical approach to alignment create
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a class environment that promotes happiness, personal power, and peace of

mind.

Summer Bootcamp instructor Wayne Goulart’s career in health and wellness began
as a hobby when he started lifting weights with his brother in the basement of his
family home. That hobby grew into a lifestyle and eventually a passion. Wayne is
a certified personal trainer (A.F.P.A.) and has been working for ten years as lead
trainer at the New Bedford YMCA. A certified group exercise instructor, Wayne's
specialty is functional training and his clients are from all walks of life, ages and

fitness levels.

Attendees to the classes should bring a mat for Yoga and a mat plus set of
weights for Bootcamp. Classes take place weather permitting — cancellations
will be posted on the Fitness in Cushman Park Facebook page:

www.facebook.com/ fitnessincushmanpark

Fitness in Cushman Park is presented free to the public thanks to the generous
support of our community sponsorship team. Last summer’s classes were

another resounding success.

Fitness in Cushman Park is coordinated by Jeff Costa Fitness and
EncorENTERTAINMENT. Jeff Costa recently opened a healing arts center,
Sangha (the word means “a yoga community” in Sanskrit), in downtown New
Bedford. Sangha New Bedford believes that nurturing the individual creates a
thriving holistic community; and a thriving holistic community empowers its

individuals with compassion, interconnection and belonging.

EncorENTERTAINMENT, owned by Susan Grace, is a full service entertainment
and event planning company serving Southeastern New England providing top-

notch entertainers for any event, program, party, picnic, outing or other festivity.

For more information about Fitness in Cushman Park call 508-287-2482 or email

sgrace@encorent.com or info@jeffcostafitness.com

Please like Fitness in Cushman Park’s Facebook page to stay involved:

www.facebook.com/ fitnessincushmanpark
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Bldg.
Bd. of Health

Advertisement 4/1/21 “The Advocate Newspaper™

Tax CK

WC pending new owner

SELECTMEN’S MEETING
Liquor License Hearing
Monday, April 26, 2021
. @7:00 PM

Application submitted for:

The Transfer of a Package Store/All Alcohol License
& Pledge of said License to The Rockland Trust Company

From:

Lambdohar Corp., d/b/a ¥.J. Moriarty Liquors
101 Middle Street
Fairhaven, MA 02719
Dipti Shukla, proposed Manager

El
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN

Notice, is hereby given, under Chapter 133 of the Massachusetts General Laws, that Lambdohar Corp.,
d/b/a F. J. Moriarty Liquors, 101 Middle Street, Fairhaven, MA, Dipti Shukla, Manager, has submitted an
application for the Transfer of a Package Store/All Alcoholic License, and a Pledge of said License to The

Rockland Trust Company.
The premise consist of one floor, five rooms, 2,184 Square feet, four entrances and four exits.

A hearing will be held at a Selectmen’s Meeting, Fairhaven Town Hall, Banquet Room, 40 Center Street,
Fairhaven, MA on Monday, April 26, 2021 at 7:00 PM,

FAIRHAVEN BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Daniel Freitas
Robert J. Espindola
Keith Siivia



The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Alecoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150-2358
WwwWw.mass.gov/abce

RETAIL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES LICENSE APPLICATION
MONETARY TRANSMITTAL FORM

APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF LICENSE

APPLICATION SHOULD BE COMPLETED ON-LINE, PRINTED, SIGNED, AND SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL
LICENSING AUTHORITY.

ECRT CODE: RETA

Please make $200.00 payment here: ABCC PAYMENT WEBSITE

PAYMENT MUST DENOTE THE NAME OF THE LICENSEE CORPORATION, LLC, PARTNERSHIP, OR INDIVIDUAL AND INCLUDE THE
PAYMENT RECEIPT

ABCC LICENSE NUMBER (IF AN EXISTING LICENSEE, CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE CiTY) [oo033-PK-0384

ENTITY/ LICENSEE NAME |Lambdohar Corp

ADDRESS [101 Middie Street |

CITY/TOWN [Fairhaven | STATE Iva | ziPcoDE [pp719 |

For the following transactions {Check all that apply):

[[] New License [ Change of Location [[] hange of Class e annual/ Seascnal) [] Change Corporate Structure fe.Comp /LG
Transfer of License [ ] Ateration of Licensed Premises [ Change of License Type fie.club / restauranty Pledge of Callateral (ie. License/Stock)
|:| Change of Manager D Change Corporate Name I:I Change of Cateqory (le. All Alcohol/Wins, Malt) D Management/Qperating Agreement
] Change of Officers/ Change of Ownership Interest D Issuance/Transfer of Stock/New Stockholder |:| Change of Hours
Directors/LLC Managers [ _] {LLC Members/ LLP Partners,
Trustees) [ Other | { [] Change of DBA

THE LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY MUST MAIL THIS
TRANSMITTAL FORM ALONG WITH
COMPLETED APPLICATION, AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS TO:

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3
Chelsea, MA 02150-2358

Complete Application on file in the
Board of Selectmen's Office
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Annual Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, {except for the
Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 31,
2019) and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s
basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Town’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor con-
siders internal control relevant to the Town's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness

Merrimack, New Hampshire

Andover, Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts
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QL) MELANSON

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Fairhaven,
Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2020, {except for the Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System,
which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019) and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison for the General Fund, and certain
Pension and OPEB schedules be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with evidence sufficient to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 25, 2021 on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance

800.282.2440 | melansoncpas.com
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with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Mobamsen

Andover, Massachusetts
March 25, 2021

800.282.2440 | melansoncpas.com



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts (the Town), we offer readers this
narrative overview and analysis of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide
financial statements, {2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to financial statements. This report
also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of our finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges {business-type activities). The governmental activities include general government,
public safety, education, public works, human services, and culture and recreation. The business-
type activities include sewer and water activities.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike




the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net
position {or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. The proprietary fund category
includes enterprise and internal service funds,

Enterprise funds are used to report activity for which a fee is charged to external users, and must
be used when one of the following criteria are met: (1) activity is financed with debt that is
secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees and charges, (2) laws or regulations
require the activity’s costs of providing services be recovered with fees and charges, and (3) the
pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs, including
capital costs such as depreciation or debt service. The primary focus on these criteria is on fees
charged to external users. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
Specifically, enterprise funds are used to account for sewer and water operations, which are
considered to be major funds.

Internai service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among various functions. Specifically, internal service funds are used to account for self-insured
employee health and dental programs. Because these services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to financial statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.



Required information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information which is required to be disclosed by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Financial Hightights

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, net position in governmental activities was
$62,272,398, a change of $1,195,273, and net position in business-type activities was
$32,301,468, a change of $(403,981).

s At the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $28,767,151, a change of $1,055,431 in comparison to the prior year.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$7,865,619, a change of 5{830,307) in comparison to the prior year.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
The following is a summary of condensed government-wide financial data for the current and

prior fiscal years.
NET POSITION {in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2018 2020 2019

Current and other assets S 40662 § 40,047 $ 11,350 S§ 12,550 & 52,012 § 52,597
Capital assets 94,849 97,883 35,231 35,245 130,080 133,128
Total assets 135,511 137,930 46,581 47,795 182,052 185,725
Deferred outflows of resources 8,421 10,002 772 976 9,193 10,978
Current liahilities 5,517 7,295 1,468 1,790 6,985 9,085
Noncurrent liabilities 62,917 66,733 12,562 13,568 75,479 80,301
Total liabilities 68,434 74,028 14,030 15,358 82,464 89,386
Deferred inflows of resources 13,226 12,827 1,022 707 14,248 13,534
Net investment in capital assets 85,577 88,261 26,046 25,896 111,623 114,157
Restricted 9,557 9,074 - - 9,557 9,074
Unrestricted (32,862) {36,258) 6,255 6,810 (26,607) {25,448)
Total net position $ 62272 S 61,077 5 32,301 S5 32,706 5 94573 & 93,783

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, total net position was 594,573,866, a change
of $791,292 in comparison to the prior year.



The largest portion of net position $111,623,106 reflects our investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position $9,557,407 represents resources that are subject to externat
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position reflects
a deficit of $(26,606,647), primarily resulting from unfunded pension and OPEB liahilities.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION {in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2020 2013 2020 2015 2020 2019
Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for services [ 6,119 S 5553 & 6691 $ 6620 S 12,810 S 12,173
Operating grants and

contributions 17,728 16,455 - - 17,728 16,455
Capital grants and

contributions - 990 57 53 57 1,043

General revenues:

Property taxes 30,308 28,537 - - 30,308 28,537
Excises 2,209 1,994 - - 2,209 1,994
Penalties, interest and

other taxes 284 425 - - 284 425
Grants and contributions

not restricted to specific

programs 3,411 3,414 - - 3,411 3,414
Investment income {loss) 475 801 19 28 494 829
Miscellaneous 610 539 8 115 618 654
Total revenues 61,144 58,708 6,775 6,816 67,919 65,524

Expenses

General government 5,644 4,679 - - 5,644 4,679
Public safety 11,273 9,267 - - 11,273 9,267
Education 33,417 32,972 - - 33,417 32,572
Public works 5,587 4,142 - - 5,587 4,142
Human services 1,512 1,948 - - 1,512 1,948
Culture and recreation 1,616 1,424 - - 1,616 1,424
Interest on long-term debt 276 294 - - 276 294
Intergovernmental 617 491 - - 617 491
Sewer services - - 4,276 4,874 4,276 4,874
Water services - - 2,911 2,168 2,911 2,168
Total expenses 59,942 55,217 7,187 7,042 67,129 62,259

(continued}



(continued)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Change in net position

hefore transfers 1,202 3,491 (412} (226) 790 3,265

Transfers in {out} (7) (18) 7 18 - -
Change in net position 1,195 3,473 (405) {208) 790 3,265
Net position - beginning of year 61,077 57,604 32,706 32,914 93,783 90,518
Net position - end of year S 62272 5 61077 S 32,301 5 32,706 5 94573 § 93,783

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities for the year resulted in a change in net position of $1,195,273. Key
elements of this change are as follows:

Change in net pension liability and related deferred outflows

and inflows of resources S {355,000
Change in net OPEB liability related deferred outflows and

inflows of resources 1,497,084
Other 53,189

Total $ 1,195,273

Business-Type Activities
Business-type activities for the year resulted in a change in net position of ${403,981). Key
elements of this change are as follows:

Sewer Fund:
Budgetary results of operations S 706,351
Depreciation expense in excess of debt service principal paydown (602,261}
Change in deferred revenue (311,981)
Other {295,396)
Subtotal (503,287)
Water Fund:
Budgetary results of operations 688,970
Depreciation expense in excess of debt service principal paydown (140,616)
Other (449,048)
Subtotal 99,306
Grand total S (403,981)



Financial Analysis of Funds

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was $7,865,619 while total fund balance was $20,059,040.
Unassigned fund balance decreased by $830,307 in fiscal year 2020. The decrease was primarily
due to use of free cash of $2,430,263 for the fiscal year 2021 budget (primarily for capital
expenditures) softened by favorable turnback’s of $1,850,716 on the Town’s fiscal year 2020
budget vs. actual. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to general fund expenditures. Refer to the table
below.

% of
General
General Fund 6/30/20 6/30/19 Change Fund Expenditures 2
Unassigned fund balance S 7865619 S 8,695926 S  (830,307) 16.1%
Total fund balance § 20,059,040 S 18,863,642 S 1,195,398 40.9%

Dncludes general stabilization fund.
@ Expenditure amounts used to calculate the above percentages have been adjusted to exclude the on-behalf
payment from the Commonwealth to the Massachusetts Teacher Retirement System of $2,667,909.

The total fund balance of the general fund changed by $1,195,398 during the current fiscal year.
Key factors in this change are as follows:

Revenue in excess of budget S 645,712
Expenditures less than budget 1,180,874
Use of free cash {4,160,107)
Prepaid tuition B86,580
Use of overlay surplus {149,000}
Change in stabilization fund 2,187,252
Change in carryforwards 609,157
Other (5,070}

Total $ 1,195,398



Included in the total general fund balance are the Town’s stabilization accounts with the following
balances:

6/30/20 6/30/19 Change

General stabilization $ 3,139,681 & 3,089,346 S 50,335
Ambulance stabilization 175,004 106,502 68,592
Capital stabilization 5,743,342 3,700,556 2,042,786
Special education reserve stabilization 430,209 404,670 25,539
Total $ 9,488326 5 7,301,074 § 2,187,252

Non-Major Governmental Funds
The non-major fund balance changed by $(139,967) primarily from timing differences between
the receipt and disbursement of grants and permanent financing of capital projects.

Proprietary Funds
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the business-type activities
reported in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $6,255,302,
a change 5{554,244) in comparison to the prior year.

Unrestricted net position of the internal service fund at the end of the year amounted to
$2,444,682, a change of $990,453 in comparison to the prior year. The decrease is due to a
decrease in claims in the |ast quarter of fiscal year 2020, which can be attributed to the impact of
the COVID19 pandemic.

Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds have already been addressed in the
entity-wide discussion of business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget resulted in an overall
change in appropriations of $1,937 for prior year bills.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets

Total investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities at year-end
amounted to $130,080,143 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, construction in progress, buildings and system, improvements, machinery and
equipment, and infrastructure.

10



Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included improvements to various Town
buildings and the purchase of various public safety and highway vehicles.

Credit rating
The Town of Fairhaven maintains an AA+/Stable credit rating from Standard and Poor’s Global

Ratings for general obligation debt.

Long-term debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonds and loans outstanding was $17,886,318, all of
which was backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Additional information on capital assets and long-term debt can be found in the Notes to Financial
Statements.

Requests For Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town'’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:

Finance Director/Treasurer/Collector
Town of Fairhaven
40 Center Street
Fairhaven, Massachusetts 02719

11



TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current:
Cash and short-term investments 5 20,206,932 S 7,928,016 5 28,134,948
Investments 12,578,331 907,176 13,485,507
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Property taxes 848,257 - 848,257
Excises 231,763 - 231,763
User fees 13,838 537,399 551,237
Departmental and other 639,949 - 639,949
Special assessments 263 220,533 220,796
Intergovernmental 238,283 981,822 1,220,105
Notes receivable 848,985 - 848,985
Deposits held by others 1,025,400 - 1,025,400
Prepaid items 886,580 - 886,580
Total Current Assets 37,518,581 10,574,946 48,093,527
Noncurrent:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Property taxes 654,686 - 654,686
User fees - 114,097 114,097
Special assessments 5,908 661,300 667,208

Intergovernmental 1,625,334 - 1,625,334

Other assets 857,957 - 857,657
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 22,183,541 10,310,083 32,493,624
Other capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation 72,665,700 24,920,819 97,586,519
Total Noncurrent Assets 97,993,126 36,006,299 133,999,425
Total Assets 135,511,707 46,581,245 182,092,852
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Related to pensions 4,410,000 610,000 5,020,000
Related to OPEB 4,010,532 162,190 4,172,722
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 8,420,532 772,190 9,192,722

(continued)
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

{continued)

Liabilities
Current:
Warrants and accounts payahle
Accrued liabilities
Notes payable
Tax refunds payable
Other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds and loans payable
Compensated absences
Landfill liability

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:
Bonds and loans payable, net of current portion
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Compensated absences
Landfill liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to pensions
Related to OPEB

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Grants and other statutory restrictions
Permanent funds:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

$

Governmental
Activities

1,996,773
1,115,706

638,000
378,452
407,316

792,000
163,345
25,000

5,516,556

7,885,000
16,840,000
36,497,187

1,470,142

62,917,329

225,000

68,433,925

3,022,000

10,203,516

13,225,916

85,576,940

6,540,810

2,546,488

(32,861,949)

62,272,398

13

470,109

$

Business-Type
Activities

92,257
63,899
700,000

21,342

562,400
28,752

1,468,650

8,646,918
2,180,000
1,475,983

258,760

12,561,661

14,030,311

605,000

412,656

1,021,656

26,046,166

6,255,302
32,301,468

$

Total

2,089,030
1,179,605
1,338,000
378,452
428,658

1,354,400
192,101
25,000

6,985,246

16,531,918
15,020,000
37,973,170

1,728,902

225,000
75,478,950

82,464,236

3,631,000

10,616,572

14,247,572

111,623,106

6,540,810

2,546,488
470,109

(26,606,647}
94,573,866
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Assets
Cash and short-term investments
Investments
Receivahbles:
Property taxes
Excises
User fees
Departmental and other
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Notes receivable
Prepaid items

Total Assets

Liahilities
Warrants payable
Accrued liahilities
Notes payable
Other liabilities

Total Liahilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

$ 11,913,235 S 6,216,774 $ 18,130,009
9,182,889 3,395,442 12,578,331
1,659,889 17,136 1,677,025
364,206 - 364,206

- 15,597 15,597
123,604 516,344 639,948

- 6,171 6,171

238,283 1,625,334 1,863,617
- 848,985 848,985

886,580 - 886,580

$ 24,368,686 S 12,641,783 S 37,010,469
S 1,679,925 S 266,178 s 1,946,103
503,311 5,423 508,734
- £38,000 638,000

407,315 - 407,315
2,590,551 909,601 3,500,152
1,719,095 3,024,071 4,743,166
886,580 2,546,488 3,433,068
- 7,011,380 7,011,380
8,003,883 - 8,003,883
3,302,958 - 3,302,958
1,865,619 (849,757} 7,015,862
20,059,040 8,708,111 28,767,151
S 24,368,686 $ 12,641,783 $ 37,010,469

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances
to Net Position of Governmental Activities
in the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Total governmental fund balances S 28,767,151

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 94,849,241

Revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and are
not deferred until collection. 5,292,840

Internal service funds are used by management to account for

health and dental insurance activities. The assets and

liabilities of the internal service funds are included with

governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 2,444,682

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, net pension liability,
net OPEB liability are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:

Bonds Payable (8,677,000
Net pension liability (16,840,000}
Total OPEB liability (36,497,187
Other (1,883,491)

Deferred outflows and (inflows) of resources realted to pensions to be recognized in
pension expense in future periods 1,388,000

Deferred outflows and (inflows} of resources realted to OPEB to be recognized in OPEB

expense in future periods {6,193,384)
Other differences {378,454}
Net position of governmental activities $ 62,272,398

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Property taxes 5 29,187,048 S 420,260 S 29,607,308
Excises 2,112,410 - 2,112,410
Penalties, interest and other taxes 282,043 2,235 284,278
Charges for services 3,520,418 2,471,060 5,991,478
Licenses and permits 442,790 - 442,790
Intergovernmental 14,757,041 3,401,464 18,158,505
Fines and forfeitures 1,850 - 1,850
Investment income 458,093 10,520 468,613
Contributions - 95,001 95,001
Miscellaneous 669,813 15,106 684,919
Total Revenues 51,431,506 6,415,646 57,847,152
Expenditures
General government 2,929,966 1,244,822 4,174,788
Public safety 8,286,528 194,446 8,480,974
Education 25,043,946 2,990,933 28,034,879
Public works 3,793,110 171,209 3,964,319
Human services 1,129,799 244,461 1,374,260
Culture and recreation 1,139,228 232,801 1,372,029
Employee benefits 7,592,601 48,351 7,640,952
Debt service
Principal 797,000 - 797,000
Interest 322,640 - 322,640
Intergovernmental 617,370 - 617,370
Capital outlay - 5,799 5,799
Total Expenditures 51,652,188 5,132,822 56,785,010
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (220,682) 1,282,824 1,062,142
Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers in 1,478,040 55,249 1,533,289
Transfers out (61,960) {1,478,040) (1,540,000)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 1,416,080 (1,422,791) {6,711}
Change in fund balance 1,195,398 (139,967) 1,055,431
Fund Balance, at Beginning of Year 18,863,642 8,848,078 27,711,720
Fund Balance, at End of Year 5 20,059,040 5 8,708,111 S 28,767,151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,055,431

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay 1,043,463
Depreciation (4,076,820}

The issuance of long-term debt {e.g., bonds) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position:

Repayments of debt 797,000

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial

resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for

various types of accounts receivable {i.e., real estate and personal

property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements.

This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue. 484,680

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health and
dental insurance activities. The net activity of internal service funds is
reported with governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 990,453

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds:

Net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources (355,000)

Net QOPEB liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources 1,497,084

Other 46,425

Other differences (287,443)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1,195,273

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
Assets
Current:
Cash and short-term investments $ 5,689,091 $ 2,238,925 § 7,928,016 $ 2,076,923
Investments 907,176 - 907,176 -
Deposits held by others - - 1,025,400
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
User fees 297,269 240,130 537,399 -
Special assessments 220,533 - 220,533 -
Intergovernmental 981,822 - 981,822 -
Total Current Assets 8,095,891 2,479,055 10,574,946 3,102,323
Noncurrent:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
User fees 72,110 41,987 114,097 -
Special assessments 661,300 - 661,300 -
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 9,017,982 1,292,101 10,310,083 -
Other capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation 21,660,032 3,260,787 24,920,819 -
Total Nancurrent Assets 31,411,424 4,594,875 36,006,299 -
Total Assets 39,507,315 7,073,930 46,581,245 3,102,323
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Refated to pensions 358,000 252,000 £10,000 -
Related to OPEB 118,712 43,478 162,190 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 476,712 295,478 772,190 -
Liabilities
Current:
Accounts payable 62,278 29,979 92,257 356,927
Accrued liabilities 39,208 24,691 63,899 300,714
Notes payable 700,000 - 700,000 -
Other current liabilities 20,467 875 21,342 -
Current portion of lang-term liabilities:
Bonds and loans payable 514,111 48,289 562,400 -
Compensated absences 19,913 8,839 28,7152 -
Total Current Liabilities 1,355,977 112,673 1,468,650 657,641
Noncurrent:
Bonds and loans payable, net of current portion 8,067,264 579,654 8,646,918 -
Net pension liability 1,426,000 754,000 2,180,000 -
Net OPEB liability 1,080,318 395,665 1,475,983 -
Compensated absences 179,213 79,547 258,760 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 10,752,795 1,808,866 12,561,661 -
Total Liabilities 12,108,772 1,921,539 14,030,311 657,641
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to pensions 318,000 291,000 609,000 -
Related to OPEB 302,036 110,620 412,656 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 620,036 401,620 1,021,656 -
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 22,120,327 3,925,839 26,046,166 -
Uarestricted 5,134,892 1,120,410 6,255,302 2,444,682
Total Net Position $ 27,255,219 $ 5,046,249 S 32,301,468 $ 2,444,682

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities Gowvernmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 3,681,357 S 3,004,918 $ 6,686,275 5 -
Employee and employer contributions - - - 7,416,184
Other - 4,580 4,580 -
Total Operating Revenues 3,681,357 3,009,498 6,690,855 7,416,184
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 1,688,994 1,104,149 2,793,143 6,431,557
Qther operating expenses 1,176,210 333,426 1,509,636 -
Depreciation 1,115,082 188,197 1,303,279 -
Intergovernmental assessments - 1,277,367 1,277,367 -
Total Operating Expenses 3,980,286 2,503,139 6,883,425 6,431,957
QOperating Income {Loss) (298,925) 106,359 {192,570) 984,187
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 19,059 838 19,897 6,266
Miscellaneous 8,296 - 8,296 -
Interest expense (295,588) {7,891} {303,479} -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net (268,233) {7,053} (275,286) 6,266
Income (Loss) Before Transfers and Capital
Contributions (567,162) 99,306 (467,856) 990,453
Transfers in 6,711 - 6,711 -
Capital contributions 57,164 - 57,164 -
Change in Net Position (503,287) 99,306 (403,981) 990,453
Net Position at Beginning of Year 27,758,506 4,546,943 32,705,449 1,454,229
Net Position at End of Year S 27,255,215 $ 5,046,249 S 32,301,468 S 2,444,682

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Proprietary funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 3,686,395 $ 2,993,502 5 6,679,897 S 7,416,184
Payments to employees (1,679,772) {1,021,032) {2,700,804) -
Payments to vendors {1,475,350) {1,653,864) (3,129,214} (7,387,619)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 531,273 318,606 849,879 28,565
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Actlvities
Transfers in 6,711 - 6,711 -
Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities 6,711 - 6,711 -
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (869,962} (415,497) {1,289,459) -
Proceeds of notes 700,000 - 700,000 -
Principal payments on bonds and loans {512,821} {47,581) (560,402) -
Payments on notes {700,000} - (700,000) -
Interest expense {302,868} {13,773} {316,641}
Capital contributions 297,798 - 297,798
Other 87,624 - 87,624
Net Cash (Used For) Capital and Related Financing Activities {1,300,229) {480,851) {1,781,080) -
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investments {280,110) - {280,110) -
Investment income 19,059 838 19,897 6,266
Net Cash Provided By {Used For) Investing Activities {261,051) 838 {260,213} b,266
Net Change in Cash and Short-Term Investments {1,023,296) {161,407) (1,184,703} 34,831
Cash and Short-Term Investments, Beginning of Year 6,712,387 2,400,332 9,112,719 2,042,092
Cash and Short-Term tnvestments, End of Year S5 5,689,091 $ 2,238,925 5 7,928,016 S 2,076,923

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income {loss) S {298,929) & 106,359 S {192,570} S 984,187
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) ta net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,115,082 188,197 1,303,279 -
Changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows:
User fees (7,537) (16,871} {24,408) -
Deposits held by others - - - (86,600}
Deferred outflows - related to pensions 60,000 98,000 158,000 -
Deferred outflows - related to OPEB 33,268 12,386 45,654 -
Accounts payable (299,141) (43,070) {342,211) (786,012)
Accrued liabilities 9,802 4,792 14,594 (83,010)
QOther liabilities 44,860 9,101 53,961 -
Net pension liability {184,000) (247,000) {431,000} -
Net OPEB liability (35,219) {14,378) {49,597} -
Deferred inflows - related to pensions 138,000 238,000 376,000 -
Deferred inflows - related to OPEB {44,913) {16,910) {61,823) -
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities S 531,273 S 318,606 3 849,879 S 28,565

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2020
Pension Private
and OPEB Purpose Agency
Trust Funds Trust Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and short-term investments S 391,120 S 155,642 S 1,625,435
Investments: -
Certificates of deposits 142,836 116,796 -
Commodities 2,218 1,814
Federal agency securities 242,204 198,047 -
Corporate bonds 293,301 239,830 -
Corporate eguities 257,135 210,257 -
Equity mutual funds 88,047 71,994 -
External investment pool 70,340,991 - -
Total Investments 71,366,732 838,738 -
Accounts receivable 110,148 - -
Total Assets 71,868,000 994,380 $ 1,625,435
Liabilities
Warrants and accounts payable - - S 145053
Accrued liabilities - - 5,630
Other liabilities - - 1,474,752
Total Liabilities - - $ 1,625,435
Net Position
Restricted for pension purposes 70,837,274 -
Restricted for OPEB purposes 1,030,726 -
Restricted for individual organizations
and other governments - 994,380
Total Net Position 5 71,868,000 ] 994,380

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pension Private
and OPEB Purpose
Trust Funds Trust Fund
Additions
Contributions:
Employers $ 5475955 $ -
Plan members 1,401,391 -
Other systems and Commonwealth of Massachusetts 128,480 -
Other 18,600 10,505
Total contributions 7,024,426 10,505
Investment income {Loss):
investment income 24,646 16,793
Increase {decrease) in fair value of investments 10,155,765 {58,538)
{ess: management fees (340,076) -
Net investment income {loss) 9,840,335 {41,745)
Total additions {loss) 16,864,761 {31,240)
Deductions
Benefit payments to plan members, beneficiaries,
and other systems 6,857,194 -
Member refunds and transfers to other systems 362,221 -
Administrative expenses 113,475 -
Other - 18,250
Total deductions 7,332,890 18,250
Net increase (decrease} 9,531,871 {49,490)
Net position restricted for pensions and other purposes
Beginning of year 62,336,129 1,043,870
End of year S 71,868,000 S 994,380

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts (the Town) conform to
generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board of Selectmen. As
required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
government and applicable component units for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable.

The Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System (the System) was established to provide
retirement benefits primarily to employees and their beneficiaries. The System is
presented using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in
the fiduciary fund financial statements. Additional financial information for the System
can be obtained by contacting the System’s retirement administrator, located at Town of
Fairhaven, 40 Center Street, Fairhaven, MA 02719.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include
(1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are exciuded from the government-wide financial
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statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
Government-wide Finonciol Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect of
interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include {1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, {2)operating grants and contributions, and
{3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes and excises.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accruol basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to he
available when they are collectible within the current period or scon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers property tax
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability
is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, certain expenditures such as debt service,
claims and judgments, compensated absences, OPEB, and pension are recorded only when
payment is due.

The Town reports the following major governmental fund:

e The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are

recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
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and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

¢ The Sewer Fund is used to account for the Town’s sewer enterprise fund operations.

e The Water Fund is used to account for the Town’s water enterprise fund operations.
The self-insured medical and dental claims trust is reported as an Internal Service Fund in
the accompanying financial statements.

The fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred.

The Town reports the following fiduciary funds:

¢ The Post-employment Benefits and OPEB Trust Funds are used to accumulate resources
for retiree post-employment benefits.

s The Private-Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than
those properly reported in the permanent fund, under which principal and investment
income exclusively benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

» The Agency Fund accounts for fiduciary assets held by the Town in a custodial capacity as
an agent on behalf of others. Agency funds report only assets and liabilities, and
therefore, have no measurement focus.

Cash and Investments

Cash balances from ail funds, except those required to be segregated by law, are combined
to form a consolidation of cash. Cash balances are invested to the extent available, and
interest earnings are recognized in the general fund. Certain special revenue, proprietary,
and fiduciary funds segregate cash, and investment earnings become a part of those
funds.

Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits, certificates of
deposits, money markets, MMDT, and savings accounts. Generally, a cash and investment
pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is
reflected on the combined financial statements under the caption “cash and short-term
investments”.
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For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider investments
with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments are carried at fair value.

Property Tax Limitations

Legislation known as “Proposition 2" has limited the amount of revenue that can be
derived from property taxes. The prior fiscal year’s tax levy limit is used as a base and
cannot increase by more than 2.5% {excluding new growth), unless an override is voted.
The actual fiscal year 2020 tax levy reflected an excess capacity of $90,758. Certain
provisions of Proposition 2 % can be overridden by a referendum,

interfund Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due from/to other funds”
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” {i.e., the non-
current portion of interfund loans}.

Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable
governmental funds to indicate the portion not available for appropriation and not
available as expendable financial resources.

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets
with an initial individual cost of more than $20,000 and an estimated useful life in excess
of five years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.
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Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Assets Years

Buiidings 40 - 50

Improvements 20-40

Infrastructure 30-60

Machinery and equipment 5-10
Compensated Absences

It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. All vested sick and vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements. A liability for these amounts
is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type Statement of Net Position.

Fund Equity
Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund
balance”. Fund equity for all other reporting is classified as “net position”.

Fund Balance

Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets/deferred
outflows and current liabilities/deferred inflows. The Town reserves those portions of fund
balance that are legally segregated for a specific future use or which do not represent
available, spendable resources and therefore, are not available for appropriation or
expenditure. Unassigned fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance that is
available for appropriation in future periods.

When an expenditure is incurred that would qualify for payment from multiple fund
balance types, the Town uses the following order to liquidate liabilities: restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Net Pasition

Net position represents the difference between assets/deferred outflows and
liabilities/deferred inflows. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any berrowing used
for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
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grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The remaining net position is
reported as unrestricted.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of
the revenues and expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary
from estimates that were used.

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary Information

At the annual town meeting, the Finance Committee presents an operating and capital
budget for the proposed expenditures of the fiscal year commencing the following July 1.
The budget, as enacted by town meeting, establishes the legal level of control and
specifies that certain appropriations are to be funded by particular revenues. The original
budget is amended during the fiscal year at special town meetings as required by changing
conditions. In cases of extraordinary or unforeseen expenses, the Finance Committee is
empowered to transfer funds from the reserve fund {a contingency appropriation) to a
departmental appropriation. “Extraordinary” includes expenses which are not in the usual
line, or are great or exceptional. “Unforeseen” includes expenses which are not foreseen
as of the time of the annual meeting when appropriations are voted.

Departments are limited to the line items as voted. Certain items may exceed the lineitem
budget as approved if it is for an emergency and for the safety of the general public. These
items are limited by the Massachusetts General Laws and must be raised in the next year’s
tax rate.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for the general fund and proprietary funds.

At year-end, appropriation balances lapse, except for certain unexpended capital items
and encumbrances which wiil be honored during the subsequent year.

Budgetary Basis

The general fund final appropriation appearing on the “Budget and Actual” page of the fund
financial statements represents the final amended budget after all reserve fund transfers and
supplemental appropriations.

Deficit Fund Equity
Certain individual funds reflected deficit balances as of June 30, 2020.
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Investment Summary
The following is a summary of the Town’s (excluding Pension Trust Fund) investments as of
June 30, 2020 (in thousands):

Investment Type Amount
Market-linked certificates of deposits s 2,137
Commoaodities 33
Corporate bonds 4,389
Corporate equities 3,848
Equity mutual funds 1,318
Federal agency securities 3,625

Total investments $ 15,350

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. For short-term investments purchased using surplus
revenues, Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 44, Section55, limits the Town's
investments to the top rating issued by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating
organization (NRSROs). The Town does not have formal investment policies related to credit
risk.

Presented below (in thousands) is the actual rating as of year-end for each investment
type of the Town. (All federal agency securities have an implied credit rating of AAA.}):

Rating as of Year End

Investment Type Amount AAA AA3 A3 A2 Al BAA1 BAA2
Corporate bonds S 4,383 § 503 S 448 5 195 S5 787 S 1,209 S5 680 S 567
Federal agency securities 3,625 3,625 - - - - - -

Total S 8014 $ 4,128 S 448 5 195 S 787 5 1,209 S 680 S 567
Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, the Town will not be able to recover
the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another
party. The Town does not have formal investment policies related to custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2020, all of the Town’s total investments were not subject to custodial credit
risk or held in the Town’s name.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Town places no limit on the amount the Town may invest in any one issuer. The Town
does not have formal investment policies related to concentration of credit risk exposure.
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Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in
mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded
from concentration of credit disclosure. The Town did not have investments in any one
issuer that represents 5% or more of total investments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Town does
not have formal investment policies limiting investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Town's investments to market
interest rate fluctuations is as follows {in thousands):

Investment Maturities

(in Years)
Less
fnvestment Type Amount Than 1 15 6-10
Market-linked certificates of deposits S 2137 5§ 1,057 S5 1,080 & -
Corporate bonds 4,389 1,656 2,733 -
Federal agency securities 3,625 882 2,347 3%
Total 5 10,151 $ 3,595 5 6,160 5 396

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have formal investment policies related
to foreign currency risk.

Fair Value

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72 Fair Value
Measurement and Application (GASB 72).

The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset
and give the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities {level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level 3
measurements). The hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used for fair
value measurement into three levels as follows:

¢ Level 1-inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the fund has the ability to access at the measurement date.
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» Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for an asset or liability
either directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be
active. Because they must often be priced on the basis of transactions involving similar
but not identical securities or do not trade with sufficient frequency, certain directly
held securities are categorized as level 2.

s Level 3—unobservable inputs based on the best information available, using assumptions
in determining the fair value of investments and derivative instruments.

in instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the fair
value hierarchy, fair value measuremenits in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the valuation. The Town’s OPEB Plan’s assessment of the
significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgment and
considers factors specific to each asset or liability.

The Town has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020 {in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted prices

in active Significant Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs

investment Type Amount {Level1) {Level 2} {Level 3)
Investments by fair value level:

Commodities $ 33 S - $ 33 $ -

Corporate bonds 4,389 - 4,389

Corporate equities 3,848 3,848

Equity mutual funds 1,318 1,318 - -

Federal agency securities 3,625 - 3,625 -

Market-linked certificates of deposit 2,137 - 2,137 -

Total $ 15,350

Equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those
securities.

Debt securities classified in Level 2 are valued using either a bid evaluation or a matrix
pricing technique. Bid evaluations may include market quotations, yields, maturities, call
features, and ratings. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities
relationship to benchmark quote prices. Level 2 debt securities have non-proprietary
information that was readily available to market participants, from multiple independent
sources, which are known to be actively involved in the market.
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Pension Trust Fund (The System)

The following is a summary of the System’s investments as of December 31, 2019:

Investment Type Amount
' External investment pool $ 70,340,991

*Fair volue is the same as the value af the pool share. The Pension Reserves Investment Trust was created under Massachusetts general
law, Chapter 32, Section 22, in December 1983, The Pension Reserves Investment Trust is operated under contract with o private
investment advisor, approved by the Pension Reserves investment Management Board. The Pension Reserves investment Management
Board shall choose an investment advisor by requesting proposals from advisors and reviewing such proposals based on criteria odopted
under Massachusetts general low, chapter 308,

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 32, Section 23, limits
the investment of System funds, to the extent not required for current disbursements, in
the PRIT Fund or in securities, other than mortgages or collateral loans, which are legal
for the investment of funds in savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth,
provided that no more than the established percentage of assets, is invested in any one
security.

All of the System’s investments are reported at fair value* and comprise shares in the PRIT
fund, which is exempt from credit risk disclosure.

*fair value is the same as the value af the pool share. The Pension Reserves Investment Trust was created under Massachusetts General
Law, Chapter 32, Section 22 in December 1983, The Pension Reserves Investment Trust is operated under contract with a private
investment advisor, approved by the Pension Reserves investment Management Boord. The Pension Reserves Investment Management
Board shall choose an investment advisor by requesting proposals from odvisors and reviewing such proposols based on criteria adopted
under Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 308,

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The System’s investment policy manages custodial credit risk through
diversification and the “prudent persen” principles outlined in PERAC guidelines.

The System’s investments of $70,340,991 comprise of pooled investment funds, which are
exempt from custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 32, Section 23 limits the amount the System may
invest in any one issuer or security type, with the exception of the PRIT Fund

All of the System’s investments are in the PRIT fund.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The System does not have
a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the System’s investments to market
interest rate fluctuations is not applicable as all of the System’s investments are immediately
liquid.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The System does not have policies for foreign currency
risk.

Fair Value

The System categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72 Fair Value
Measurement and Application (GASB 72). ‘

The net asset value (NAV) per share is the amount of net assets attributable to each share
of capital stock outstanding at the close of the period. Investments measured at the NAV

for fair value are not subject to fair value hierarchy level classification.

The System has the following fair value measurements as of December 31, 2019:

Redemption
Frequency Redempticn
Unfunded {If currently Notice
Investment Type Amount Commitments eligible} Period
Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV):
State Investment Pool [PRIT) $ 70,340,991 $ - Monthly 30 Days

Property Taxes and Excises Receivable

Real and personal property taxes are based on market values assessed as of each
January 1. By law, all taxable property must be assessed at 100% of fair cash value. Also
by law, property taxes must be levied at least 30 days prior to their due date. Once levied,
these taxes are recorded as receivables, net of estimated uncollectible balances. Property
tax revenues have been recorded using the accrual and modified accrual basis of
accounting on the government-wide and fund basis statements accordingly.
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The Town bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basis following the January 1
assessment. The due dates for those quarterly tax billings are August 1, November 1,
February 1, and May 1. Property taxes that remain unpaid after the respective due dates
are subject to penalties and interest charges.

Based on the Town’s experience, most property taxes are collected during the year in
which they are assessed. Liening of properties on which taxes remain unpaid generally
occurs annually. The Town ultimately has the right to foreclose on all properties where the
taxes remain unpaid.

A statewide property tax limitation known as “Proposition 2 %” limits the amount of
increase in the property tax levy in any fiscal year. Generally, Proposition 2 % limits the
total levy to an amount not greater than 2 %% of the total assessed value of all taxable
property within the Town. Secondly, the tax levy cannot increase by more than 2 %% of
the prior year’s levy plus the taxes on property newly added to the tax rolls.

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for every motor vehicle and trailer
registered in the Commonwealth. The Registry of Motor Vehicles annually calculates the
value of all registered motor vehicles for the purpose of excise assessment. The amount
of motor vehicle excise tax due is calculated using a fixed rate of $25 per $1,000 of value.

Boat excise taxes are assessed annually for all water vessels, including documented boats
and ships, used or capable of being used for transportation on water. A boat excise is
assessed by the community where the vessel is moored. July 1 is the assessing date for all
vessels, and the boat excise due is calculated using a fixed rate of $10 per $1,000 of value.

Property taxes and excise receivables at June 30, 2020 consist of the following:

Allowance
Gross for Long-
Amount Doubtfui Current Term
{fund basis) Accounts Portion Portion

Real estate taxes $ 21,296 5 (73,898} § (52,602) S
Personal property taxes 697,805 {4,328) 693,481
Community preservation act 17,136 (997) 16,139
Tax liens 928,297 {93,610) 185,808 648,879
Deferred taxes 12,487 {1,249) 5,431 5,807

Total property taxes $ 1,677,025 § (174,082) § 848257 S 654,686

Motor vehicle excise § 347,047 5 (127,548) & 219,499
Boat excise 17,159 (4,895) 12,264
Total excises S 364,206 S (132,443) § 231,763
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Schedule of Revenues and Other Sources, and Expenditures and Other Uses - Budget and Actual

Budgeted Amounits Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Property taxes 29,049,840 S 29,049,840 29,187,048 S 137,208
Excises 2,030,000 2,030,000 2,112,410 82,410
Penalties, interest and other taxes 350,000 350,000 282,043 (67,957}
Charges for services 4,300,000 4,300,000 4,519,425 219,425
Licenses and permits 410,000 410,000 442,790 32,790
Intergovernmental 12,083,958 12,083,958 12,089,132 5,174
Fines and forfeitures 5,000 5,000 1,850 {3,150}
Investment income 210,000 210,000 279,241 69,241
Miscellaneous 181,258 181,258 351,829 170,571
Total Revenues 48,620,056 48,620,056 49,265,768 645,712
Expenditures
General government 6,415,558 6,415,558 6,099,211 316,347
Public safety 9,239,714 9,239,714 9,024,294 215,420
Education 23,608,422 23,608,422 23,563,382 45,040
Public works 4,732,178 4,732,178 4,588,638 143,540
Human services 1,319,589 1,319,589 1,149,814 169,775
Culture and recreation 1,291,041 1,291,041 1,196,507 94,534
Employee benefits 8,993,706 8,993,706 8,813,016 180,690
Debt service 1,257,327 1,257,327 1,126,351 130,976
Intergovernmental 501,922 501,922 617,370 (115,448)
Total Expenditures 57,359,457 57,359,457 56,178,583 1,180,874
Excess [deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (8,739,401) (8,739,401} (6,912,815) 1,826,586
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 2,597,503 2,597,503 2,619,696 22,193
Use of free cash 4,160,107 4,160,107 4,160,107 -
Use of prior year assigned fund balance (carryforwards) 1,832,791 1,832,791 1,832,791
Use of overlay surplus 149,000 145,000 149,000
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 8,739,401 8,739,401 8,761,594 22,193
Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures and other uses - 5 . 1,848,779 S5 1,848,779

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

(Unaudited)

Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System

Proportion  Proportionate
of the Share of the Proportionate Share of the Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Fiscal Measurement Net Pension  Net Pensign Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of the Total

Year Date Liabili Liabilit Covered Payroll Percentage of Covered Payroll Pension Liabilit
lune 30,2020 December 31, 2019 56.41% $19,020,000 $ 12,565,115 151.37% 78.20%
June 30,2019  December 31, 2018 56.45% $21,457,000 $ 11,357,838 188.92% 73.50%
June 30,2018  December 31, 2017 56.96% $16,953,000 $ 11,413,162 148.54% 78.40%
June 30,2017  December 31, 2016 96.71% $21,500,000 $ 10,759,955 199.81% 71.00%
June 30,2016 December 31, 2015 96.56% $18,463,000 $ 10,200,598 181.00% 72.70%
June 30, 2015  December 31, 2014 56.46% $16,607,000 $ 10,150,034 162.97% 75.49%

Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System
Commonwealth of Total Net Proportionate
Massachusetts' Total Pension Share of the Plan Fiduciary
Propertion  Proportionate Proportionate Share Liability Net Pension Net Position
of the Share of the of the Net Pension Associated Liability as a Percentage of

Fiscal Measurement Net Pension  Net Pension Liability Associated with the Percentage of the Total

Year Date Liability Liability with the Town Town Covered Payroll ~ Covered Payroll  Pension Liability
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 0.184795% - $ 46,594,344 546,594,344 $13,475,265 - 53.85%
June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 0.182095% - $ 43,176,990 $43,176,990 $12,808,086 - 54.84%
June 30, 2018 lune 30, 2017 0.179119% - $ 40,992,054 $40,992,054 $12,197,384 - 54.25%
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 0.176155% - $ 39,384,609 $39,384,609 $11,619,221 - 52.73%
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 0.180847% - $ 37,054,975 $37,054,975 $11,486,110 - 55.38%
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 0.184015% - $ 29,251,667 $29,251,667 $10,910,853 - 61.64%

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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WHEREAS, the Company intends to make regular, periodic contributions to not-for-profit
organizations providing services to the Fairhaven community including, but not necessarily limited to
services, education, counseling and treatment for substance abuse and mental health; and

WHEREAS, the parties intend by this Agreement to satisfy the provisions of G.L. ¢.94G,
Section 3(d), applicable to the operation of the Facility, such activities to be only done in accordance
with the applicable state and local laws and regulations in the Town;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein,

and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Company and the Town agree as follows:

1. Recitals

The Parties agree that the above Recitals are true and accurate and that they are incorporated herein
and made a part hereof.

2. Payments

A. Community Impact Fee

The Company anticipates that the Town will incur additional expenses and impacts on the Town’s
road and other infrastructure systems, law enforcement, fire protection services, inspectional services,
and permitting and consulting services, as well as unforeseen impacts, both quantifiable and
unquantifiable, on the Town, In the event that the Company obtains the requisite license and/or
approvals as may be required for the operation of the Facility, and receives any and all necessary and
required permits and licenses of the Town, and at the expiration of any final appeal period related
thereto, which permits and/or licenses allow the Company to locate, occupy and operate the Facility in
the Town. Accordingly, the Company agrees to pay a Community Impact Fee to the Town, in the
amount and under the terms provided herein. Accordingly, in order to mitigate the financial impact on
the Town and use of Town resources.

1. Company shall annually pay a Community Impact Fee in an amount equal to three
percent (3%) of Gross Sales from marijuana and marijuana product sales at the
Facility. The term “Gross Sales” shall mean the total of all retail sales transactions of
the Facility without limitation, and shall include but not be limited to all adult use
marijuana and medical marijuana sales occurring at the Facility, including the sale of
marijuana, marijuana infused products, paraphernalia, and any other products sold by
the Facility directly to consumers or wholesale to other Marijuana Establishments.
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3.Pre-operations Fees and Costs: In addition to the Community Impact Fee, the Company
shall reimburse the Town for any and all costs incurred by the Town prior to the
commencement of Facility operations, including, but not limited to, reasonable
consulting costs and fees related to any land use applications concerning the Facility,
negotiation of this and any other related agreements, and any review concerning the
Facility, including planning, engineering, legal and/or environmental professional
consultants and any related reasonable disbursements at standard rates charged by the
above-referenced consultants in relation to the Facility, training of staff, public
relations and educational expenses.

4. Other Costs: The Company shall reimburse the Town for the actual costs incurred by
the Town in connection with holding public meetings and forums substantially devoted
to discussing the Facility and/or reviewing the Facility and for any and all reasonable
consulting costs and fees related to the monitoring and enforcement of the terms of this
Agreement, including, but not limited to independent financial auditors, and legal fees.

5 Police Officer Training: The Company shall reimburse the Town for the actual cost
incurred for a local police officer to complete Advanced Roadside Impairment Driving
Enforcement training program and for certification and recertification of a Drug
Recognition Expert.

|

Late Payment Penalty: The Company acknowledges that time is of the essence with
respect to their timely payment of all funds required under Section 2 of this
Agreement. In the event that any such payments are not fully made within ten (10}
days of the date they are due; the Town shall provide the Company with written notice
of such failure to make a timely payment. The Company shall have a ten (10} day
period to cure such failure to make timely payment from the date of receipt of such
notice. If the Company fails to make full payment within such cure period, the
Company shall be required to pay the Town a late payment penalty equal to five
percent (5%) of such required payments.

. Charitable Contributions

The parties hereby recognize and agree that the charitable contributions which the Company has
pledged to make are purely voluntary, are not part of the consideration for this Agreement, and the
failure of the Company to make any such contributions shall not be considered a breach of this
Agreement.

D. Annual Reporting for Host Community Impact Fees and Benefit Payments

The Company shall submit annual financial statements to the Town within 60 days after the payment
of its fourth quarter payment of the Community Impact Fee with a certification of its annual sales.
The Company shall maintain books, financial records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the
requirements of this Agreement in accordance with standard accounting practices and any applicable
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abatement or exemption; this payment shall be in addition to the payment made by the Company
under Section 2 of this Agreement.

5. Security and Safety

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, and subject to the security and architectural
review requirements of the CCC, or such other state licensing or monitoring authority, as the case
may be, the Company shall work with the Town’s Police Department in reviewing and approving all
security plans prior to the implementation and Commencement of Operations, including determining
the placement of exterior security cameras, but in no event will the Police Department’s review
override the requirements of the CCC.

The Company agrees to comply with requirements outlined in Exhibit A and cooperate with the
Police Department, including but not limited to periodic meetings to review operational concerns,
security, delivery schedule and procedures, cooperation in investigations, immediate access and
transfer of video footage from any video surveillance system of the establishment’s interior or exterior
when so requested by the Police Department (which request may be made when the Police
Department has a reason to believe such footage may be of assistance in an ongoing investigation
related or non-related to the Establishment’s business) and communications with the Police
Department of any suspicious activities at or in the immediate vicinity of the Facility, and with regard
to any anti-diversion procedures to ensure that marijuana and marijuana products produced by the
Facility are not being transferred to the illegal market or to minors.

If requested, the Company shall implement a comprehensive diversion prevention plan to prevent
diversion of medical marijuana and marijuana products into the illicit market and to minors, such plan
to be in place prior to the Commencement of Operations at the Facility. The Company shall present
the diversion plan to the Police Department for its review and feedback and, to the extent required by
the Police Department, work collaboratively to implement any reasonable changes, amendments or
modifications to address local concerns.

The Company shall promptly report the discovery of the following to Town Police within 24 hours or
forthwith as defined in Exhibit A of the Company becoming aware of such event: diversion of
marijuana; unusual discrepancies identified during inventory; theft; loss and any criminal action;
unusual discrepancy in weight or inventory during transportation; any vehicle accidents, diversions,
losses, or other reportable incidents that occur during transport; any suspicious act involving the sale,
cultivation, distribution, processing, or production of marijuana by any person; unauthorized
destruction of marijuana; any loss or unauthorized alteration of records related to marijuana,
registered qualifying patients, personal caregivers, or dispensary agents; an alarm activation or other
event that requires response by public safety personnel; failure of any security alarm system due to a
loss of electrical power or mechanical malfunction that is expected to last longer than eight hours; and
any other breach of security. The Licensee shall promptly copy the Town’s Chief of Police on any
notifications and submissions it makes to the Massachusetts Department of Public Health pursuant to
105 CMR 725.110 (F) and/or 935 CMR 500.110(7) or other provisions of law relating to the
Establishment (*Incident Reporting™).
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The Company shall (a) satisfy all minimum energy efficiency and equipment standards established by
the Cannabis Control Commission and meet all applicable environmental laws, regulations, permits,
and other applicable approvals; (b} adopt and use best management practices as determined by the
Cannabis Control Commission to reduce energy usage and consumption and engage in energy
conservation; and (c) ensure that lighting power densities for cultivation spaces does not exceed an
average of 36 watts per gross square foot of active and growing canopy.

The Company shall report to the Select Board annually on its energy use and shall include in 1ts
annual report a summary of its ongoing strategies to further reduce electrical demand.

10. Water Consumption

The Company shall follow the CCC’s Best Management Practices for Water Use. In addition the
Company shall install water meters, conduct regular water audits to determine the amount and
location of water use, and develop and implement a water savings strategy. The Company shall report
to the Select Board annually on its water use, and shall include in its annual report a summary of its
ongoing strategies to further reduce water use.

11. Waste and Waste Water Controls

The Company shall ensure that all recyclables and waste, including organic waste composed of or
containing finished marijuana and marijuana products, shall be stored, secured, and managed in
accordance with applicable state and local statutes, ordinances, and regulations and comply with the
CCC’s Waste Management Requirements.

The Company shall exclusively use organic or natural cultivation processes to limit the risk of
cultivation-related pollutants and contaminants from being discharged into surface water and
groundwater. Company shall utilize cultivation processes such as hand watering of plants and use of
dehumidification systenis to ensure that there is no wastewater discharged as part of the cultivation at
the Facility. Company agrees to consult with the Fairhaven Water and Sewer Division regarding its
cultivation methods and wastewater plan prior to commencing cultivation at the Establishment or in
the event of a change of the Company’s cultivation practices that may result in wastewater discharge
at the Establishment. The Company shall comply with all reasonable requests of the Fairhaven Water
and Sewer Division, including, but not limited to, testing requirements and tank holding requirements
if necessary.

The Company will ensure that no fewer than two agents witness and document how the marijuana
waste is disposed or otherwise handled (recycled, composted, etc.) in accordance with 935 CMR
500.105(12). When marijuana products or waste is disposed or handled, the Company will create and
maintain a written or electronic record of the date, the type and quantity disposed or handled, the
manner of disposal or other handling, the location of disposal or other handling, and the names of the
two Company agents present during the disposal or other handling, with their signatures. The
Company shall keep these records for at least three years.

12. Odor Control Technology
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Agreement and shall, at the request of the Select Board, appear at a regularly scheduled meeting to
discuss the Company’s Annual Report.

16. Successors/Assigns

The Company shall not assign, sublet, or otherwise transfer its rights nor delegate its obligations
under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent from the Town, not
unreasonably withheld, and shall not assign any of the monies payable under this Agreement, except
by and with the written consent of the Town.

Events deemed an assignment include, without limitation: (i) Company’s final and adjudicated
bankruptcy whether voluntary or involuntary; (ii) the Company’s takeover or merger by or with any
other entity; (iii) the Company’s outright sale of assets and equity, majority stock sale to another
organization or entity for which the Company does not maintain a controlling equity interest; (iv) or
any other change in ownership or status of the Company; (v) any assignment for the benefit of
creditors; and/or (vi) any other assignment not approved in advance in writing by the Town.

17. Notices

Any and all notices, consents, demands, requests, approvals or other communications required or
permitted under this Agreement, shall be in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage prepaid,
return receipt requested, by registered or certified mail or by other reputable delivery service, and
shall be deemed given when so delivered by hand, if so mailed, when deposited with the U.S. Postal
Service, or, if sent by private overnight or other delivery service, when deposited with such delivery
service.

To the Town:

Town of Fairhaven,

Attn: Town Administrator
40 Center Strect
Fairhaven, MA 02719

To the Company:

Attn: Andre Arzumanyan
Elevation Retail IT LLC.
240 Bridge St.

Fairhaven, MA 02719

18. Severability

If any term of condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to any extent be held
invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and
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The Parties hereto agree that nothing contained in this Agreement or any other documents executed in
connection herewith is intended or shall be construed to establish the Town, or the Town and any
other successor, affiliate or corporate entity as joint ventures or partners.

26. Nullity

This Agreement shall be null and void in the event that the Company does not locate the Facility in
the Town or relocates the Facility out of the Town. Further, in the case of any relocation out of the
Town, the Company agrees that an adjustment of Payments due to the Town hereunder shall be
calculated based upon the period of occupation of the Facility within the Town, but in no event shall
the Town be responsible for the return of any funds provided to it by the Company.

27. Indemnification

The Company shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Town harmless from and against any and all
claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of actions, defenses, proceedings and/or costs and
expenses, including attorney’s fees, brought against the Town, their agents, departments, officials,
employees, insurers and/or successors, by any third party arising from or relating to the development
of the Property and/or Facility., Such indemnification shall include, but shall not be limited to, all
reasonable fees and reasonable costs of attorneys and other reasonable consultant fees and all fees and
costs (including but not limited to attorneys and consultant fees and costs) shall be at charged at
regular and customary municipal rates, of the Town’s choosing, incurred in defending such claims,
actions, proceedings or demands. The Company agrees, within thirty (30) days of written notice by
the Town, to reimburse the Town for any and all costs and fees incurred in defending itself with
respect to any such claim, action, proceeding or demand.

28. Third-Parties

Nothing contained in this agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in
favor of a third party against either the Town or the Company.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first
written above.

TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN

, Chairperson President

, Vice Chairperson

Clerk
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parts of the Company’s books and financial records which relate to the payment and shall include a
certification of itemized Gross Sales for the previous calendar year, and all other information required
to ascertain compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The independent audit of such records shall
be conducted in such a manner as not to interfere with the Company’s normal business activities.

3. Local Yendors and Employment

To the extent such practice and its implementation are consistent with federal, state, and municipal
laws and regulations, the Company will make every effort in a legal and non-discriminatory manner
to give priority to local businesses, suppliers, contractors, builders and vendors in the provision of
goods and services called for in the construction, maintenance and continued operation of the Facility
when such contractors and suppliers are properly qualified and price competitive and shall use good
faith efforts to hire Town residents.

4. Local Taxes

At all times during the Term of this Agreement, property, both real and personal, owned or operated
by the Company shall be treated as taxable, and all applicable real estate and personal property taxes
for that property shall be paid either directly by the Company or by its landlord and neither the
Company nor its landlord shall object or otherwise challenge the taxability of such property and shall
not seek a non-profit or agricultural exemption or reduction with respect to such taxes; however,
nothing in this provision shall prohibit the Company from appealing any assessment made on its

property.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) if real or personal property owned, leased or operated by the
Company is determined to be non-taxable or partially non-taxable, or (ii) if the value of such property
is abated with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would otherwise be paid if assessed
at fair cash value as defined in G.L. c. 59, §38, or (iii) if the Company is determined to be entitled or
subject to exemption with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would otherwise be due
if not so exempted, then the Company shall pay to the Town an amount which when added to the
taxes, if any, paid on such property, shall be equal to the taxes which would have been payable on
such property at fair cash value and at the otherwise applicable tax rate, if there had been no
abatement or exemption; this payment shall be in addition to the payment made by the Company
under Section 2 of this Agreement.

5. Security and Safety

To the extent requested by the Town’s Police Department, and subject to the security and architectural
review requirements of the CCC, or such other state licensing or monitoring authority, as the case
may be, the Company shall work with the Town’s Police Department in reviewing and approving all
security plans prior to the implementation and Commencement of Operations, including determining
the placement of exterior security cameras, but in no event will the Police Department’s review
override the requirements of the CCC.

The Company agrees to comply with requirements outlined in Exhibit A and cooperate with the
Police Department, including but not limited to periedic meetings to review operational concerns,
security, delivery schedule and procedures, cooperation in investigations, immediate access and
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Outreach Meeting relative to the operation of the Facility; said written policies and procedures, as
may be amended from time to time by the Company or at the request of the Select Board, shall be
reviewed and approved annually by the Town and shall be incorporated herein by reference and made
a part of this Agreement, the same as if each were fully set forth herein.

7. Additional Obligations

The obligations of the Company and the Town recited herein are specifically contingent upon the
Company obtaining a Final license and/or Final Certificate of Registration from the CCC, and the
Company’s receipt of any and all necessary local approvals to locate, occupy, and operate the Facility
in the Town.

This agreement does not affect, limit, or control the authority of Town boards, commissions, and
departments to carry out their respective powers and duties to decide upon and to issue, or deny,
applicable licenses, permits and other approvals under the statutes and regulations of the
Commonwealth, the General and Zoning Bylaws of the Town, or applicable regulations of those
boards, commissions, and departments or to enforce said statutes, bylaws and regulations. The Town,
by entering into this Agreement, is not hereby required or obligated to issue such licenses, permits and
approvals as may be necessary for the Facility to operate in the Town, or to refrain from enforcement
action against the Company and/or the Facility for violation of the terms of said permits and approvals
or said statutes, bylaws, and regulations.

8. Traffic Management

The Company shall at its own expense, employ a police detail, if deemed necessary by the Town, to
manage traffic at the site. In the event there is traffic queuing at the Facility which cannot be
accommodated through existing parking and police detail, the Company shall provide off-site parking
and shuttle service to the Facility to alleviate traffic issues.

9, Electrical Usage and Renewable Enersv Requirements

The Company shall (a) satisfy all minimum energy efficiency and equipment standards established by
the Cannabis Control Commission and meet all applicable environmental laws, regulations, permits,
and other applicable approvals; (b) adopt and use best management practices as determined by the
Cannabis Control Commission to reduce energy usage and consumption and engage in energy
conservation; and (c) ensure that lighting power densities for cultivation spaces does not exceed an
average of 36 watts per gross square foot of active and growing canopy.

The Company shall report to the Select Board annually on its energy use and shall include in its
annual report a summary of its ongoing strategies to further reduce electrical demand.

10. Water Consumption

The Company shall follow the CCC’s Best Management Practices for Water Use. In addition the
Company shall install water meters, conduct regular water audits to determine the amount and
location of water use, and develop and implement a water savings strategy. The Company shall report
to the Select Board annually on its water use, and shall include in its annual report a summary of its
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13, Support

The Town agrees to submit to the CCC, or such other state licensing, registering or monitoring
authority, as the case may be, the required certifications relating to the Company’s application for a
license or certificate of registration to operate the Facility where such compliance has been properly
met, but makes no representation or promise that it will act on any other license or permit request,
including, but not limited to any zoning application submitted for the Facility, in any particular way
other than by the Town’s normal and regular course of conduct and in accordance with its rules and
regulations and any statutory guidelines governing them.

14. Term

Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall take effect on the date set forth above, and
shall continue in effect for as long as the Company, or its successor or assignee, operates the Facility
in the Town, and subject to Section 2.A.2, hereof with respect to the renewal of the Community
Impact Fee.

In the event the Company has not secured a final license and certificate of registration from the CCC
and all necessary local permits from the Town for the Facility and has not commenced the
use/operations at the Facility within two years from the date this Agreement is signed, this Agreement
shall expire and the Company shall be required to negotiate a new Host Community Agreement in
order to operate the Facility within the Town. The Select Board, in its discretion, may agree to an
extension of the two-year expiration, for good cause, which shall include the time required to pursue
or await the determination of an appeal of the special permit or other legal proceeding.

15. Annual Reporting

The Company shall file an annual written report with the Town in connection with its annual financial
submissions each year for purposes of reporting on compliance with each of the terms of this
Agreement and shall, at the request of the Select Board, appear at a regularly scheduled meeting to
discuss the Company’s Annual Report.

16. Successors/Assions

The Company shall not assign, sublet, or otherwise transfer its rights nor delegate its obligations
under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent from the Town, not
unreasonably withheld, and shall not assign any of the monies payable under this Agreement, except
by and with the written consent of the Town.

Events deemed an assignment include, without limitation: (i) Company’s final and adjudicated
bankruptcy whether voluntary or involuntary; (ii) the Company’s takeover or merger by or with any
other entity; (iii) the Company’s outright sale of assets and equity, majority stock sale to another
organization or entity for which the Company does not maintain a controlling equity interest; (iv) or
any other change in ownership or status of the Company; (v) any assignment for the benefit of
creditors; and/or (vi) any other assignment not approved in advance in writing by the Town.

17. Notices
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This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire
integrated agreement between the Company and the Town with respect to the matters described
herein. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and representations, either
written or oral, and it shall not be modified or amended except by a written document executed by the
parties hereto.

21. Amendments/Waiver

Amendments, or waivers of any term, condition, covenant, duty or obligation contained in this
Agreement may be made only by written amendment executed by all signatories to the original
Agreement, prior to the effective date of the amendment.

22. Headings

The article, section, and/or paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference
only, and shall in no way affect, modify, define or be used in interpreting the text of this Agreement.

23. Counterparts

This Agrcement may be signed in any number of counterparts all of which taken together, cach of
which is an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any party
hereto may execute this Agreement by signing one or more counterparts.

24. Signatures

Facsimile signatures affixed to this Agreement shall have the same weight and authority as an original
signature.

25. No Joint Venture

The Parties hereto agree that nothing contained in this Agreement or any other documents executed in
connection herewith is intended or shall be construed to cstablish the Town, or the Town and any
other successor, affiliate or corporate entity as joint ventures or partners.

26. Nullity

This Agreement shall be null and void in the event that the Company does not locate the Facility in
the Town or relocates the Facility out of the Town. Further, in the case of any relocation out of the
Town, the Company agrees that an adjustment of Payments due to the Town hereunder shall be
calculated based upon the period of occupation of the Facility within the Town, but in no event shall
the Town be responsible for the return of any funds provided to it by the Company.

27. Indemnification

The Company shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Town harnnless from and against any and all
claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of actions, defenses, proceedings and/or costs and
expenses, including attorney’s fees, brought against the Town, their agents, departments, officials,
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EXHIBIT A
Marijuana Retail Establishment Requirements
In addition to all requirements under 935 CMR 500.000 and its specific subsections addressing

security and other areas (500.110, 500.105, 500.100) of the Cannabis Control Commission, the
Fairhaven Police Department requires the following:

® Commercial grade video system recording and monitoring of:

all points of entry and exit, exit doors Vault areas
overhead doors Delivery/Receiving Areas
all parking areas Panic Alarms

Video shall be able to provide clear, identifying still photos and video of faces, vehicles and
license plates.

® Fairhaven Police having remote access to the video as necessary

® Monitored alarm system to include all exterior doors, windows and other access points. The
system shall include glass break and interior motion sensors

® Commercial grade exterior locks, doors and windows

® Limited access security, such as key card or biometric readers

® Roof access deterrent to include physical barriers and interior motion alarms

® Physical deterrents to unauthorized vault wall access (masonry, mesh lining etc)
¢ Currency Scanners for larger bills (Policy of Scanning $20.00 bills and higher)

¢ Exterior parking lot shall allow for sufficient light to facilitate video surveillance and still
photos

® Exterior windows shall have shatterproof film
® Traffic Study and or mitigation, if required by Chief of Police

¢ Detail Officer(s), as necessary, at the discretion and direction of the Chief of Police for safety
and/or traffic concerns

® Any diversion, theft, loss or breach of security shall be reported to the Fairhaven Police
forthwith. A final report concerning the matter shall be sent to the Fairhaven Police within 10
days.
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Any notice of intent to sell for other usec shall be accompanied by a
statement of intent to sell, a statement of proposed use of the land, the
location and acreage of land as shown on a map drawn at the scale of the
assessors map in the city or town in which the land is situated, and the
name, address and telephone number of the landowner.

Any notice of intent to sell for other use shall be accompanied by a
certified copy of an executed purchase and sale agreement specifying the
purchase price and all terms and conditions of the proposed sale, which is
limited to only the property classified under this chapter, and which shall
be a bona fide offer as described below.

Any notice of intent to sell for other use shall also be accompanied by
any additional agrecments or a statement of any additional consideration
for any contiguous land under the same ownership, and not classified
under this chapter, but sold or to be sold contemporancously with the
proposed sale.

For the purposes of this chapter, a bona fide offer to purchase shall mean
a good faith offer, not dependent upon potential changes to current
zoning or conditions or contingencies relating to the potential for, or the
potential extent of, subdivision of the property for residential use or the
potential for, or the potential extent of development of the property for
industrial or commercial use, made by a party unaffiliated with the
landowner for a fixed consideration payable upon delivery of the deed.

Any notice of intent to convert to other use shall be accompanied by a
statement of intent to convert, a statement of proposed use of the land, the
location and acreage of land as shown on a map drawn at the scale of the






option to meet a bona fide offer to purchase the land.

In the case of intended or determined conversion not involving sale, the
municipality shall have an option to purchase the land at full and fair
market value to be determined by an impartial appraisal performed by a
certified appraiser hired at the expense of the municipality or its assignee,
the original appraisal to be completed and delivered to the landowner
within 30 days after the notice of conversion to the municipality. In the
event that the landowner is dissatisfied with the original appraisal, the
landowner may, at the landowner's expense, contract for a second
appraisal, to be completed within 60 days after the delivery of the notice
to convert. If, after completion of the second appraisal, the parties cannot
agree on a consideration, the parties will contract with a mutually
acceptable appraiser for a third appraisal whose cost will be borne
equally by both parties. The third appraisal shall be delivered to both
parties within 90 days after the notice of conversion to the municipality
and shall be the final determination of consideration. Upon agreement of
a consideration, the city or town shall then have 120 days to exercise its
option. During the appraisal process, the landowner may revoke the
intent to convert at any time and with no recourse to either party.

The option may be exercised only after a public hearing followed by
written notice signed by the mayor or board of selectmen, mailed to the
landowner by certified mail at the address that is specified in the notice of

intent. Notice of public hearing shall be given in accordance with section
23B of chapter 39.

The notice of exercise shall also be recorded at the registry of deeds and
shall contain the name of the record owner of the land and description of
the premises adequate for identification of them.






The notice of assignment shall state the name and address of the
organization or agency of the commonwealth which will exercise the
option in addition to the terms and conditions of the assignment. The
notice of assignment shall be recorded with the registry of deeds.

Failure to record either the notice of exercise or the notice of assignment
within the 120 day period shall be conclusive evidence that the city or
town has not exercised its option.

If the option has been assigned to a nonprofit conservation organization
or to the commonwealth or any of its political subdivisions, the option
may be exercised by the assignee only by written notice to the landowner
signed by the assignee, mailed to the landowner by certified mail at the
address that is specified in the notice of intent. The notice of exercise
shall also be recorded with the registry of deeds and shall contain the
name of the record owner of the land and description of the premises
adequate for identification of them.

The notice of exercise to the landowner shall be accompanied by a
proposed purchase and sale contract or other agreement between the
assignee and landowner which, if executed, shall be fulfilled within a
period of not more than 90 days, or upon expiration of any extended
period the landowner has agreed to in writing, from the date the contract
or agreement, endorsed by the landowner, is returned by certified mail to
the assignee.

During the 120 day period, the city or town or its assignees, shall have
the right, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to enter upon
the land for the purpose of surveying and inspecting the land, including,
but not limited to, soil testing for purposes of Title V and the taking of
water samples.
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§ 190-5 Contact Information of Owner, Operator and/or Operator’s Agent.

A. An Owner of a Short-term Rental shall provide the Fairhaven Building Department with
his/her current residential address and telephone number upon application for a Registration as
well as a full and complete list or persons (as defined above) or who have a direct or indirect
interest in any property for which a Short-term Rental Registration in the Town of Fairhaven has
been issued or for which a Short-term Rental Registration application is pending.

B. If the Owner is a corporation, the name, address, and telephone number of the president and
legal representative of the corporation shall be provided. If the Owner is a realty trust or
partnership, the name, address, and telephone numbers of the managing trustee or partner shall
be provided.

C. The name and contact information of the Operator must be provided, along with the name and
contact information of an Operator’s Agent, if different from the Operator, who is able to
respond in person to any issues or emergencies that arise during occupancy within one (1) hour
of contact by Fairhaven Inspectional Services Department to complaints regarding the condition
or operation of the Short-term Rental. Contact information must include a telephone number that
is available 24 hours per day, 7 days a week to Short-term Rental Occupants and the above-
stated public safety agencies. This contact information shall be included in the application for a
Short-term Rental Registration and shall be posted conspicuously within the rental unit.

§ 190-6 Good Neighbor Information

Short-term rental registrations will be published to the Town’s website and shall include the
contact information required in section 190-5(C) above. The website shall also include
information about these Short-term rental regulations, and instructions and contact information to
file a complaint.

§ 190-7 Posting of Notices

The Town shall provide information to each registered Operator summarizing the regulations for
Short-term rentals. For each Short-term Rental Registration issued, this will include, but shall not
be limited to: the name and 24-hour contact information of the Operator or Operator’s Agent
designated in the application, requirements for trash removal, occupancy requirements, parking,
and noise restrictions. The Operator shall:

A. Provide each occupant a copy of the provided information; and

B. Post the information, along with the Short-term Rental Registration, in a conspicuous location
within the Short-term Rental; and

C. Post the Short-term Rental registration number on a placard visible from the street in the
dwelling’s front yard or front door.

§ 190-8 Specific Standards of Short-Term Rental Properties

A. Trash Removal. The Short-term Rental Operator shall be responsible for ensuring that
household trash is removed from the premises immediately after Occupancy is concluded or
once per week, whichever is more frequent.

B. Parking. On-site parking of one space per Short-term Rental bedroom. (ZONING)

C. Renting for durations of less than twenty-four (24) consecutive hours shall not be permitted.
D. Owner-Occupied.

E. Commercial meetings and uses are prohibited in Short-term Rentals.

F. Each Short-term Rental shall contain functional smoke detectors and carbon monoxide alarms.
In addition, the Operator shall provide and maintain one 2.5 1b, multi-purpose fire extinguisher
on each floor.
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§ 190-9 Occupancy Requirements
Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 59-3, the maximum number of Occupants in a Short-
Term Rental shall be two per each bedroom, plus an additional two total.

§ 190-10 Keeping of Register

The Operator or Operator’s Agent shall be responsible for keeping a register containing the name
of the

Occupant who is the leaseholder, total number of occupants, and dates of occupancy. The
register shall be

retained for a period of two (2) years and shall be made available upon request to Fairhaven
Inspectional

Services Department.

§ 190-11 Ineligible Units

The following are not eligible to be rented or offered to rent as Short-term Rentals:

A. Dwellings designated as below market rate or income-restricted, that are subject to
affordability covenants, or that are otherwise subject to housing or rental assistance under local,
state, or federal law;

B. Family Apartments or Accessory Affordable Apartments;

C. Dwellings subject to any requirement of local, state, or federal law that prohibits the lecasing
or subleasing of the unit or use of the unit as a Short-term Rental;

D. Dwellings that are the subject of any outstanding building, sanitary, zoning, or fire code
violations, orders of abatement, stop work orders, unsafe orders, or cease and desist orders.

E. Properties designated as Problem Properties under MGL Chapter 160.

§ 190-12 Failure to Pay Municipal Taxes, Fees, Assessments, and Charges.

The privilege of receiving or holding a Short-term Rental Registration is contingent upon the
timely payment of municipal and district taxes, fees, assessments, and charges. Failure of a
Person to comply with this requirement shall be cause, after notice and hearing pursuant to the
requirements of G.L. ¢. 40, §57, for denial, suspension, amendment, or revocation of a Short-
Term Rental Registration for any and all property in which the person holds a direct or indirect
ownership interest, as above defined.

§ 190-13 Inspections

Short-term Rentals shall be subject to a mandatory initial inspection and reasonable inspections
thereafter by the Fairhaven Building Commissioner and/or Police, Fire, Health or other duly
authorized authority from the Town,

§ 190-14 Complaint Process, Violations

A. Complaint. A complaint alleging that a Short-term Rental is in violation of this Chapter or any
applicable law, code or regulation may be filed with the Fairhaven Inspectional Services
Department. The complaint must contain the Short-term Rental address, unit number, date and
nature of alleged violation(s), and name and contact information of complainant.

B. Written notice of any violations of this chapter shall be treated as a complaint and may also be
given by Inspectors. The notice shall specify the nature of the violation to the Occupant and
Owner and the time within which compliance must be achieved. The requirements of this
subsection shall be satistied by mailing such notice, through the United States Postal Service by
certified mail, or by delivering in hand such notice as memorialized by an affidavit of any Town
employee or officer authorized to serve any form of process notice to the Owner or legal
representative named on the registration application.
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C. Any notice required or contemplated by this chapter shall be deemed sufficient if delivered to
or mailed to the mailing address listed by the owner on the Short-term Rental Registration
application then on file with the Fairhaven Building Department, A written change-of address
notice signed by the Owner/s and delivered to the Fairhaven Building Department may be filed
at any time.

D. Review of Complaint. The Inspectional Service Department shall investigate complaint(s)
within a reasonable timeframe and shall determine whether there may be a violation. If the
alleged violation is under the jurisdiction of another city or state or federal agency, the
Commissioner shall refer the complaint to such agency for further action. Upon a finding of a
potential violation, the Commissioner or designee shall serve notice of the violation upon the
Owner of the Short-term Rental. The Building Commissioner shall keep records of all
complaints received and determinations made.

E. Offering an Ineligible Unit as a Short-term Rental. Any person who offers a unit as a Short-
term Rental, where such unit is not an eligible Dwelling Unit or is not registered, may be fined in
accordance with the fine schedule herein on a per violation per day basis. Each day&#39;s
failure to comply with a notice of violation or any other order shall constitute a separate
violation. The Commissioner or a designee may also seek an injunction from a court of
competent jurisdiction prohibiting the offering of the unit as a Short-term Rental.

F. Failure to Obtain a Registration. Any person who offers an eligible Dwelling Unit as a Short-
term Rental without a valid Short-term Rental Registration, or any person who offers an eligible
Dwelling Unit as a Short-term Rental while the unit&#39;s registration is suspended, may be
fined in accordance with the fine schedule herein on a per violation per day basis. Each
day&#39;s failure to comply with a notice of violation or any other order shall constitute a
separate violation.

G. Failure to Comply with Notice of Violation. Any person who fails to comply with any notice
of violation or other order issued pursuant to this section by the Commissioner or a designee for
a violation of any provision of this section may be fined in accordance with the fine schedule
herein on a per violation per day basis. Each day’s failure to comply with a notice of violation or
any other order shall constitute a separate violation.

H. Right to Hearing. A person upon whom a notice of violation has been served may request a
hearing by filing a written petition requesting a hearing on the matter with the Fairhaven
Building Department within fourteen days after the day the notice of violation was served. Upon
receipt of a petition for hearing, the Commissioner shall notify the complainant of the place, date
and time of the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted by a Hearing Officer designated as such
by the Town Administrator and shall occur no later than three (3) weeks after the date the
Fairhaven Building Department receives the petition for hearing. The time peried in which
violations must be remedied shall be stayed upon receipt of the petition for a hearing until such
time as the hearing is held and the Hearing Officer has issued a decision.

[. Decision. Within seven days after the conclusion of the hearing, the Commissioner or designee
shall sustain, modify, or withdraw the notice of violation and shall inform the person upon whom
a notice of violation has been served, in writing, of its decision and the reasons therefor. If the
Fairhaven Building Department sustains or modifies the notice of violation, said violation shall
be remedied within the time period allotted as issued or in the modification.

J. Violations of an unoccupied dwelling shall be corrected prior to occupancy. Violations found
in an occupied dwelling shall be corrected within the time specified as determined by the
Inspectors. '

K. If a written petition for a hearing is not filed within fourteen (14) days after the notice of
violation has been served, or if, after a hearing, the notice of violation has been sustained in any
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part, each day&#39;s failure to comply with the notice of violation within the time allotted as
issued or modified shall constitute a separate violation.

§ 190-15 Registration Suspension, Modification and Revocation

In addition to, and not in lieu of, the penalties that may be assessed pursuant to this chapter, the
Fairhaven Building Commissioner, after notice and public hearing, may suspend, revoke or
modify any or all registration approvals issued hereunder to an Owner for violation of these
regulations or of any conditions tmposed by the Fairhaven Inspectional Services Department,
notwithstanding that a violation may have been found with respect to one or more, but not all of
the registered properties held by an owner. These remedies shall be non-exclusive.

§ 190-16 Judicial Appeals

Any person aggrieved by a final decision of the Hearing Officer and Fairhaven Building
Commissioner with respect to a notice of violation or any other order issued under this section
may seek relief therefrom in any court of competent jurisdiction.

§ 190-17 Penalties

If any Occupant, Operator or Owner violates any provision of this chapter, the Owner may be
subject to a fine in accordance with the following: $150 1st Offense, $300 2nd Offense and each
subsequent offense. Each day that a violation exists constitutes a separate offense.

§ 190-18 Enforcement

The Town may enforce the provisions of this chapter by any or all of the following: the
noncriminal disposition process of M.G.L. ¢. 40, s. 21D; by seeking to restrain a violation by
injunction; and by filing a complaint in any court of competent jurisdiction.

§ 190-19 Regulations
The Fairhaven Building Commissioner may adopt regulations, policies and procedures for the
implementation of this chapter.

§ 190-20 Severability

Each provision of this Chapter shall be construed as separate. If any part of this Chapter shall be
held invalid for any reason, the remainder shall continue in full force and effect. In the event of a
conflict between this Chapter and any other Chapter of the General Code of Fairhaven, this
Chapter 190 shall control.

§190-21 Annual Reporting
The Town Manager shall publish annually in the Town of Fairhaven Annual Report on the
statistical data relating to Short-term Rentals.

PROPOSED GENERAL BYLAW AMENDMENT TO IMPOSE A 3% COMMUNITY
IMPACT FEE ON SHORT TERM RENTALS

To see if the Town will enact the following amendments to the Town Bylaw Chapter that
would allow the Town to adopt a general bylaw amendment that would impose a three
percent (3%) Community Impact Fee, per Section 3D (b) of M.G.L. Chapter 64G, to be paid
monthly on the total amount of rent for each transfer of occupancy of any professionally
managed short-term rental units and on short-term rental units located within a two-family or
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three-family dwelling that includes the operator&#39;s primary residence. By statute, thirty five
percent (35%) of all community impact fees received pursuant to this Order shall be dedicated to
either affordable housing or local infrastructure projects within the Town. The Town of
Fairhaven already has a six percent (6%) Hotel Room Occupancy Tax that automatically

applies to Short Term Rentals as of July 1, 2019 based on the new law (Section 3D (b) of
M.G.L. Chapter 64G).

1) That the Town of Fairhaven accepts the provisions of Section 3D (a) of M.G.L.

Chapter 64G, and hereby imposes a 3 percent (3%) community impact fee on

the total amount of rent for each transfer of occupancy of a professionally

managed short-term rental unit that is located within the Town. All community impact fees
received pursuant to this Order shall be paid to the Department of Revenue monthly by the
operator.

2) That the Town of Fairhaven accepts the provisions of Section 30 (a) of M.G.L.

Chapter 64G, and hereby imposes a 3 percent (3%) community impact fee on the

total amount of rent for each transfer of occupancy within a t wo-family or three-

family dwelling that includes the operator&#39;s primary residence short-term rental

unit that is located within the Town. All community impact fees received pursuant

to this Order shall be paid to the Department of Revenue monthly by the

operator, To see if the town will vote to create Bylaw Chapter 190 in order to allow and regulate
Short-Term rentals and to see if the Town will create community Impact Fee of 3% on Short-
Term rentals to pay for the regulation and enforcement.

Petitioned by: Planning & Economic Development Committee

ARTICLE 36: AMENDMENT TO BPW BY-LAW SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING
CURBSIDE

To see if the town will vote to add a section to the Town of Fairhaven By-laws or to take any
other action relative thereto:
a. Customers shall place solid waste and recycling curbside prior to 7:00 am on the
designated collection day but no earlier than 5:00 pm on the day prior to the designated
collection day.
b. Customers shall remove all acceptable solid waste containers from the public layout
(street or sidewalk) as soon as practicable or, in any event, no later than 7:00 pm on the
designated collection day for the area.

Petitioned by: Board of Public Works

ARTICLE 37: AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN’S PLANNING BY-LAWS CHAPTER 194
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

To see if the town will vote to amend Chapter 194 Stormwater Management, illicit discharge,
soil erosion, sediment control or take any other action relative thereto:

§ 198-31.1 Stormwater management.

[Added 5-1-1999 ATM by Art. 9]

This section shall apply to all new special permits subject to § 198-29 for additions or renovations
which increase the impervious area of property applied for after January 12, 1999, as provided for in
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MGL c. 40A, § 6. Further this section shall also apply to such special permits granted prior to January
12, 1999, as provided for in MGL c. 40A, § 6, if the building permits authorized under such special
permit are not issued prior to November 1, 1999. No lot created after May 1, 1999, may be built upon
without compliance with this section. The requirements of this section may be met for lots created
after May 1, 1999, by approval of a subdivision plan that includes a stormwater management plan, as
described herein, by the Fairhaven Planning Board. This section shall also apply to all new special
permits subject to § 198-29 that disturb one (1) or more acres of land regardless of whether they
increase the impervious area of a property.

A. Standards.

(1) Stormwater management for each development shall be designed consistent with or more
stringent than the requirements of the Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook, shall comply with
Chapter 194: Stormwater Management, Illicit Discharge, Soil Erosion, Sediment Control Bylaw
and Adhere to the standards and requirements of Regulations issued there under and shall
accomplish the following:

(a) Flooding, The design and construction of each subdivision or special permit project shall be done
in a manner such that post-development runoff will not exacerbate or create flooding conditions,
or alter surface water flow paths, resulting in impacts to adjacent properties to the site during the
two-, ten-, twenty-five- and one-hundred-year twenty-four-hour storm events.

[1] Noincrease will be allowed in the peak rate of runoff off of the site for any of the above design
storms,

[2] No increase will be allowed in the volume of runoff off of the site up to the ten-year, twenty-four-
hour design storm.

(b) Water quality. The first flush of stormwater runoff shall be treated prior to discharge off of the
site. The treatment system(s) shall be designed to accommodate the first flush from the entire
development site,

[1] Stormwater management systems for New Development and Redevelopment projects shall meet
minimum requirements of the General Permit for Stormwater Discharges From Small Municipal
Separate Storm Sewer Systems in Massachusetts (MS4 Permit) including.

(a) New Development Projects shall provide removal of 90% of the average annual
(not per storm) load of Total Suspended Solids (TSS) generated from the total
post-construction impervious area on the site AND 60% of the average annual
(not per storm) load of Total Phosphorus (TP) generated from the total post-
construction impervious surface area on the site. Average annual pollutant
removal requirements are achieved through one of the following methods:

i. Installing BMPs that meet the pollutant removal percentages based on
calculations developed consistent with EPA Region 1°s BMP Accounting
and Tracking Tool (2016) or other BMP performance evaluation tool
provided by EPA Region 1, where available. 1f EPA Region 1 tools do
not address the planned or installed BMP performance any federally or
State approved BMP design guidance or performance standards (e.g. State
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stormwater handbooks and design guidance manuals) may be used to
calculate BMP performance; or

ii. Retain the volume of runoff equivalent to, or greater than, one (1.0) inch
multiplied by the total post-construction impervious surface area on the
site; or

iit. Meeting a combination of retention and treatment that achieves the above
standards.

(b) Redevelopment projects shall provide removal of 80% of the average annual (not
per storm) post-construction load of Total Suspended Solids (TSS) generated
from the total post-construction impervious area on the site AND 50% of the
average annual (not per storm) load of Total Phosphorus (TP) generated from the
total post-construction impervious surface area on the site. Average annual
pollutant removal requirements are achieved through one of the following
methods:

i. Installing BMPs that meet the pollutant removal percentages based on
calculations developed consistent with EPA Region 1°s BMP Accounting
and Tracking Tool (2016) or other BMP performance evaluation tool
provided by EPA Region 1, where available. If EPA Region 1 tools do
not address the planned or installed BMP performance any federally or
State approved BMP design guidance or performance standards (e.g. State
stormwater handbooks and design guidance manuals) may be used to
calculate BMP performance; or

ii. Retaining the volume of runoff equivalent to, or greater than, 0.80 inch
multiplied by the total post-construction impervious surface area on the
site; or

ili. Meeting a combination of retention and treatment that achieves the above
standards.

(c) Redevelopment activities that are exclusively limited to maintenance and
improvement of existing roadways, (including widening less than a single lane,
adding shoulders, correcting substandard intersections, improving existing
drainage systems, and repaving projects) shall improve existing conditions unless
infeasible and are exempt from Section 1.b. Roadway widening or improvements
that increase the amount of impervious area on the redevelopment site by greater
than or equal to a single lane width shall meet the requirements of Section 1.b.

[2] Any development in Nasketucket River Basin Zoning Overlay District shall incorporate physical
treatment processes to remove nitrogen at an efficiency rate of 30% or greater.

[3] Identify the immediate down gradient waterbody(s) that stormwater runoff from the project site
discharges to, EPA’s waterbody assessment and TMDL status of the waterbody(s),
http://www.epa.gov/regionl/npdes/stormwater/ma.htm] and the LIDs and BMPs included in the
project to address the pollutant(s) of concern.
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(d)
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@)

(D

@)

Reproduce, as nearly as possible, the hydrologic conditions in the ground and surface waters prior
to the development. Low Impact Development (LID) site planning and design strategies must be
implemented unless infeasible in order to reduce the discharge of stormwater from development
sites. Infeasible means not technologically possible, or not economically practicable and
achievable in light of best industry practices. Provide an explanation as to why LID techniques
were included or excluded from the project.

Reduce stormwater pollution to the maximum extent possible using best management practices
(BMPs).

Have a long-term maintenance plan.

The Planning Board is authorized to vary from these standards due to topographic features of the
lot.

Submittal requirements.

It shall be the responsibility of the applicant for all subdivisions greater than three lots and for all
special permits for new construction, and for special permits for additions or renovations which
increase the impervious area of a property requiring approval of the Planning Board to submit 10
copies of a stormwater management plan (SMP) detailing the existing environmental and
hydrological conditions of the site, proposed alterations of the site, and all proposed components
of the drainage system and any measures for the detention, retention or infiltration of water, for
the protection of water quality and protection from flooding. The SMP shall contain sufficient
information for the Planning Board to evaluate the effectiveness and acceptability of those
measures proposed by the applicant for controlling flooding and pollution from stormwater
runoff. The SMP shall contain maps, charts, graphs, tables, photographs, narrative descriptions,
calculations, plans showing construction details of all systems and structures, and citations to
supporting references, as appropriate, to communicate the information as required by this section.

The submittal of a stormwater management plan shall include an order of conditions or a
determination of non-applicability from the Fairhaven Conservation Commission issued under
the Fairhaven Wetlands Bylaw.

Site characteristic information to be included in the stormwater management plan (SMP).
Predevelopment conditions shall include:

The existing watersheds on the property, as well as upgradient areas contributing runoff to the
property;

Location of all surface waters and wetlands on the site or on lots adjacent to the site;

The delineation of the one-hundred-year flood elevation as indicated on the Federal Emergency
Management Act (FEMA) maps. If FEMA maps do not exist or if the waterbody or watercourse
one-hundred-year flood elevation is not indicated on the map, the e¢levation shall be calculated
utilizing an appropriate methodology such as NRCS TR-55 or TR-20 or HEC2. (Note: The
floodplain location determined by the FEMA maps are approximate. When a specific elevation is
given, the location of the floodplain shall correspond to that elevation.);
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Post development conditions in narrative form or calculations shall include: peak discharge rate,
based on the two-, ten-, twenty-five- and one-hundred-year twenty-four-hour storm event using
NRCS TR-55 or TR-20; volume of the surface runoff for the ten-year twenty-four-hour storm
event using NRCS TR-55 or TR-20; design point(s) for each watershed; detention/retention time,
discharge rate, and approximate time of concentration through the BMP for the water quality
storm; a description of and calculations for the proposed outlet structure(s); both the principle
outlet and emergency spillway; and a discussion regarding whether the proposed stormwater
system meets or exceeds the established performance standards as well as an evaluation of the
pollutant removal efficiency of each proposed treatment facility or group of facilities.

Design standards. The design, construction and maintenance of the stormwater system, and the
submittal of information to evaluate the system, shall be consistent with the standards and
specifications set out below.

Performance standards and design specifications.

Control of stormwater runoff shall meet the design criteria for both flood (volume and peak
discharge) control and nonpoint source pollution reduction as indicated in Subsection A above.
All assumptions, methodologies and procedures used to design stormwater systems shall
accompany the design.

Stormwater design methodology considerations for stormwater management.

Runoff calculations for flood control shall be provided utilizing the rational formula, the NRCS
TR-20 or TR-55, as appropriate for the site. The appropriate methodology shall be determined
from the restrictions on each method described in Basic Hydrological Calculations for
Conservation Commissioners Runoff, Land Subject to Flooding, and Flow in Pipes and Channels,
(1987). The Rational Method cannot be used to determine volume.

The appropriate pre and post-development worksheets as shown in Basic Hydrological
Calcutations for Conservation Commissioners Runoff, Land Subject to Flooding, and Flow in
Pipes and Channels, (1987), shall be submitted with the subdivision plan or special permit
application.

The flow length for predevelopment sheet flow to determine the time of concentration (Tc) or
travel time (Tt) shall not exceed 50 feet.

Design points.

The design points shall be at the:

Edge of wetlands;

Property line; or

Existing storm drain system.

For each predevelopment design point there shall be a corresponding post development design

point.
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General standards and specifications. The design, construction and maintenance of stormwater
systems shall be consistent with the following:

Discharging runoff without treatment directly into rivers, streams, watercourses or wetlands is
prohibited.

Natural watercourses shall not be dredged, cleared of vegetation, deepened, widened,
straightened, stabilized or otherwise altered.

Land outside the parcel subject to development review shall not be used in the stormwater
management plan (i.e., the location of the detention pond) unless a recordable easement has been
granted for such use and a copy of the easement has been submitted to the Planning Board as part
of the SMP.

The site shall be graded so that surface water shall be directed into the stormwater management
system.

Intermittent watercourses such as swabs shall be vegetated.

Prior to discharging any stormwater runoff into a stormwater system, the following conditions
must also be met:

The system shall be installed according to applicable standards and specifications of this section;
All components of the system shall be stabilized; and

All upland areas contributing stormwater runoff to the system shall be stabilized (nonerosive).
All basins/ponds designed for stormwater runoff control shall:

Be designed in accordance with current NRCS standards and specifications unless otherwise
indicated in Subsection C(4), Specific standards and specifications below;

Have a two-stage design when pollution reduction and flood control are incorporated into one
stormwater management system. The upper stage shall provide enough storage to control the post
development peak discharge rates for the two-, ten-, twenty-five- and one-hundred- year, twenty-
four-hour storm events to the predevelopment levels; the lower stage shall provide enough
storage to meet the pollution removal efficiencies as described Subsection C(4), Specific
standards and specifications below;

Have energy dissipaters at the outlets of all inflow and outflow pipes;
Have outflow pipes designed to minimize clogging (i.e., through the use of trash racks);

Have an emergency spillway to allow for the passage of water without damage to the water
quality structure for storms greater than their largest design capacity;

Have side slopes at a no steeper than a four horizontal to one vertical grade unless otherwise
called for by the Fairhaven Conservation Commission to minimize a stormwater system's impact
on wetland or bordering wetland resource areas (Side slopes must be stabilized and planted with
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vegetation to prevent erosion. A ten-foot wide bench at 0% slope shall surround any permanent
pool.); and

Except for the sediment forebay, shall have no permanent pool depth in excess of 2 1/2 feet.

All water quality stormwater systems shall be designed in accordance with the runoff volume
indicated in Subsection A above. Runoft greater than this design criteria shall be controlled using
the peak discharge/volume control criteria in Subsection A above.

Infiltration basins using redundant sediment removal techniques (i.e., sediment forebay, grassed
swale and filter fabric) may be designed and utilized to act as stormwater systems for both water
quality and volume control, provided all other standards and specifications are met.

Volume control structures shall not be placed upgradient of any pollution stormwater system.
Volume control shall be by infiltration;

Infiltration areas designed and constructed to control the volume of runoff shall be located in
areas with a NRCS hydrological soil group of A, B or C;

Infiltration for volume control shall be designed and constructed with the bottom of the
infiltration area at or above the maximum high groundwater elevation; and

The calculations to determine the size of the volume control structure shall assume the surface of
the structure to be impervious;

Forebays.

All water quality basin/ponds shall have a sediment forebay. These forebays shall:
Consist of a separate cell;

Be sized to contain 0.25 inches per impervious acre of contributing drainage;

Be less than a twelve-foot distance from the bank to the center of the forebay,

Be four feet deep; and

Have nonerosive exit velocities for the two-year design storm.

If the water quality basin is to be deeded to the town, the forebay shall be constructed to meet
Board of Public Works requirements.

The forebays may have a headwall depending on the Board of Public Works recommendations.

Where stormwater basins are designed with a permanent pool depth, a post-and-rail fence with
pressure-treated or locust posts, with a backing of plastic coated wire fencing shall be used when
the basin is in close proximity to residential units, and shall further inhibit access by a planting of
thick shrubs such as rugosa rose (Rosa rugosa) surrounding the basin,
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the impervious area 11 days after the water quality storm.
Conveyance of stormwater:

The entire drainage system of storm drainage lines shall be capable of conveying the twenty-five-
year storm, including catch basins, manholes and culverts.

Water velocities in pipes and gutters shall be between two and 10 feet per second. Water
velocities in nonpaved areas (e.g., swales, ditches) shall not be more than published values for
maximum permissible velocities based on surface cover type and soil types.

Water velocities in catch basins shall not exceed 0.5 feet per second. Catch basins shall be
designed (inlet capacity and spacing) such that the flow in the gutter during a twenty-five-year
design storm is not more than three feet in width as calculated utilizing methodologies described
in "Drainage of Highway Pavements, Hydraulic Engineering Circular No. 12" as published by the
United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. In any event,
water shall not be allowed to run for more than 300 feet on paved surfaces.

Catch basins shall be constructed of at least six inches precast reinforced concrete, Catch basin
grates shall be in the gutter to facilitate snow removal.

The standard depth of catch basins shall be a minimum 2.5 feet below the invert of the outlet.
Manholes shall be constructed at each junction point of storm drain lines. Catch basins shall not
serve as manholes.

Storm drains shall be of at least 12 inches diameter inside, with at least 24 inches of cover, and
shall be of reinforced concrete Class IV pipe if having less than 48 inches of cover within a street
right-of-way. Aluminum pipe of at least comparable strength may be substituted in appropriate
locations if approved by the Fairhaven Board of Public Works (BPW). All drain pipes except
subdrains shall be reinforced concrete or ADS. Waivers from these standards shall be allowed
upon recommendation of the Board of Public Works.

Easements and provisions for vehicular access shall be provided along the entire length of storm
drain lines.

Cross culverts.

Culverts and stormwater outlet structures shall have reinforced concrete headwalls designed in
accordance with good practice.

At cross culverts (where a roadway bisects a stream or manmade watercourse), drainage
easements shall be established upgradient of the culvert and delineated on the definitive plan
based on the projected one-hundred-year headwater elevation.

Selecting a water quality BMP. Three designs for water quality BMPs, micropool extended
detention basins, wet extended detention ponds, and infiltration basins are listed in Subsection
C(4), Specific standards and specifications below. One of these BMPs may be appropriate for the
site:
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Micropool extended detention basins (EDB) with a forty-eight-hour detention time will not
adequately remove bacteria. No EDB proposed within 1,000 feet of a sensitive receptor for
bacteria shall be approved. In Fairhaven, these arcas are:

All coastal waters excluding inner New Bedford Harbor.
Zone 2 of public water supply wells at Mill Pond pumping station.

Due to the high failure rate of conventional infiltration practices (including porous pavement),
they are not an accepted method of stormwater management unless redundant pretreatment for
sediment removal is utilized. No underground infiltration practices, such as leaching catch basins,
shall be allowed.

Oil/grit separators are not needed for the type of pollutants associated with subdivisions. They
shall not be approved for residential subdivisions. Oil/grit separators may be required for special
permits granted by the Planning Board.

Other water quality BMPs may be approved, provided that the pollutant removal rate meets or
exceeds the requirements of Subsection A above.

Specific standards and specifications for water quality BMP's.

Micropool extended detention basin (EDB). In order to provide an estimated removal efficiency
of 80% for suspended solids, 30% total phosphorus, and 15% total nitrogen, EDBs shall be
designed in accordance with Subsection C(1), Performance standards and design specifications,
plus the specific criteria stated below. The design of EDBs shall include:

Minimum contributing watershed arca of 10 acres;

A minimum of forty-eight-hour detention time for the water quality storm;

A sediment forebay at the inlet;

A micropool located near the outlet structure to reduce resuspension of sediments;

A minimum of 3:1 length to width ratio with the inlet structure placed a maximum distance from
the outlet structure; and

The establishment of, and the methodology with which to maintain, wetland vegetation on the
bottom of the basin.

Wet extended detention ponds/basins (WP). The minimum design criteria below plus Subsection
C(1), Performance standards and design specifications, will provide an estimated removal
efficiency of 80% for suspended solids, 65% total phosphorus, and 40% total nitrogen. The
design of WPs shall include:

A minimum contributing watershed of 25 acres, or measures to maintain a permanent pool of
water;

A permanent pool volume within the permanent pool equal to 40% of the water quality (first
flush) volume;
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A sediment forebay volume of 13% of the water quality (first flush) volume;

An extended detention storage volume of 47% of the water quality (first flush) volume;
A detention time for the water quality (first flush) volume of 48 hours;

A maximum depth of 2.5 feet;

A marsh component to be established along the pond edges;

A minimum of 3:1 length to width ratio with the inlet structure placed at a maximum distance
from the outlet structure.

Infiltration basin (IB). A design based on both the minimum design criteria for [Bs listed below

and the design criteria in Subsection C(1), Performance standards and design specifications, will
provide an estimated removal efficiency of 80% for suspended solids and 90% for bacteria. The

design of IBs shall include:

Three redundant pretreatment mechanisms (such as a sediment forebay or detention pond)
adequate to remove and store 80% of the TSS.

Adequate volume to infiltrate the first flush of runoff.

Compliance with the specifications found in the State of Rhode Island Stormwater Design &
Installation Manual, September 1993, when not specified elsewhere in this section.

Section 6.3(a), (b)(1)(2)(4), Site Suitability, utilizing the Bristol County Soil Survey, or more
recent unpublished updates available at the NRCS office in Wareham.

Section 6.4 Infiltration Rates.

Section 6.6 (a through 1) Design Requirements.
Section 6.7(a)(1-11) Separation Distances.
Inspection and maintenance.

After the stormwater management system has been constructed and before the performance
guaranty for the development has been released, the applicant shall submit an "as-built" plan
detailing the actual stormwater management system as installed. The consulting engineer for the
Town shall inspect the system to confirm its as-built features. This engineer shall also evaluate
the effectiveness of the system in an actual storm. If the system is found to be inadequate by
virtue of physical evidence of operational failure, even though it was buiit as called for in the
definitive plan, it shall be corrected before the performance guaranty is released. Examples of
inadequacy shall be considered but not limited to: errors in the infiltrative capability, errors in the
maximum groundwater elevation, failure to properly define or construct flow paths, or erosive
discharges from basins. The cost of having the town's consulting engineer review and evaluate
the as-built plans and the stormwater management system shall be borne by the developer.

All stormwater management systems shall be maintained in accordance with the following
regulations.

39



(a)

(b)
[1]
2]

[3]
(c)
[1]

[3]

[4]
[5]
(d)
[1]

[2]

[3]

The applicant shall submit 10 copies of a maintenance plan for stormwater management.
Maintenance plans for each basin include a maintenance schedule, an outline of responsible
parties and owners, all pertinent agreements to be executed to ensure proper maintenance and an
estimate of future yearly maintenance costs.

To facilitate maintenance, each water quality basin/pond shall be constructed with:
Direct maintenance access by heavy equipment to the forebay;

A hardened bottom in the forebay made of stone or concrete to make sediment removal easier;
and

A fixed sediment depth marker installed in the forebay to measure sediment deposition over time.
Routine maintenance and inspections shall conform to the following:

Stormwater management systems shall be inspected annually and cleared of debris, sediment and
vegetation when they affect the functioning and/or design capacity of the facility;

Where lack of maintenance is causing or contributing to a water quality problem, immediate
action shall be taken by the property owner to correct the problem within 14 days of written
notice by the Planning Board;

All actions required to maintain the stormwater management system for the purpose it was
designed and constructed must be performed within 30 days following the maintenance
inspection;

Accumulated sediment shall be excavated as needed or at the request of Planning Board; and
Any vegetation uprooted by sediment removal shall be replaced.
To ensure future maintenance and avoid undue costs to the town:

Each basin design shall have a design life of 20 years, as documented in a peer review
publication, third party testing or other independent means.

The applicant shall provide cost estimates per year for future maintenance of the stormwater
conveyance and detention/infiltration system. This cost estimate shall include semiannual
sediment removal from all catch basins and street sweeping, and cleaning of sediment forebays
and detention ponds when necessary. The Board of Public Works shall be required to approve all
cost estimates prior to Planning Board approval.

The applicant shall provide to the Planning Board assurances that there is in place a mechanism
such as a bond, letter of credit, escrow account or similar security to ensure the maintenance,
inspection and repair of the stormwater system for a period of at least 20 years.

Petitioned by: Board of Public Works

ARTICLE 38: STREET ACCEPTANCE ROBERT STREET
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To see if the Town will vote to accept the layout of a parcel of land shown as Robert Street on a
plan entitled “Street Layout and Acceptance Plan for Robert Street™, scale: 1 = 30°, dated
October 2, 2019 and prepared by GCG Associates, Inc,, Wilmington, MA., said Robert Street is
40 feet in width and contains_15,745 square feet +/-.

Beginning at a point at the intersection of the northerly sideline of Robert Street and the
westerly sideline of Castle Avenue, as shown on plan here after referenced; thence

South 01°53° 45" East, along the westerly sideline of Castle Avenue, forty and zero
hundredths feet (40.00) to a point; thence

South 8846’ 30” West, along the southerly sideline of Robert Street, three hundred twenty-
eight and twenty-six hundredths feet (328.26) to a point; thence

Along a non-tangent arc to the right with a radius of thirty and zero hundredths feet (30.00) a
distance of one hundred forty-four and seventy-one hundredths feet (144.71) to a point; thence

North 88° 46’ 30” East, along the northerly sideline of Robert Street, three hundred twenty-
eight and thirteen hundredths feet (328.13) to the point of beginning.

The above description for Robert Street is a 40° wide way and contains 15,745 square feet +/-

Above described parcel being shown as Robert (40’ Wide Right of Way) Street on “Street Layout
and Acceptance Plan for Robert Street” Scale 1”=40" Dated 10/02/2019 prepared by GCG
Associates, Inc. Said plan to be recorded at the South Bristol Registry of Deeds.

Or to take any action thereto:
Petitioned by: Board of Public Works
ARTICLE 39: HISTORIC TOWN HALL LAMPS

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate, borrow or transfer from available funds a
sum of money for the purchase and installation of four (4} decorative street lamps on three (3)
sides of Town Hall. One (1) on Walnut Street, one (1) on William Street, and two (2) on Center
Street. Cost not to exceed $25,000.00 or take any action relative thereto:

Petitioned by: Historical Commission

ARTICLE 40: AUTHORIZE BOARD OF SELECTMEN TO PETITION TO IMPOSE A
CHECKOUT BAG CHARGE

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectboard to petition the General Court to adopt
legislation, as set forth below, to implement a minimum charge of $0.10 for all new checkout
bags distributed in the Town of Fairhaven, which legislation would have the underlying
purposes of 1) incentivizing consumers to reuse checkout bags, the most environmentally
sustainable and economical option, 2) allowing consumers to have the choice of not paying for
unwanted or unneeded new checkout bags, 3) allowing collected money to be retained by the
retailer so as to help businesses defray the costs of switching to more environmentally
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sustainable checkout bag options, and 4) reducing the generation of waste and associated costs
of disposal and recycling that must be borne by the Town and its residents; provided, however,
that the General Court may make clerical and editorial changes of form only to said bill, unless
the Selectboard approves amendments to the bill prior to enactment by the General Court; and
provided further that the Selectboard shall be authorized to approve any such amendments
which shall be within the scope of the general public purposes of this petition; or to take any
other action relative thereto:

RORMCHRCHHURBANES THE TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN TO ESTABLISH A FEE

SECTION 1. The following words, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, shall have the
following meanings:

“Checkout Bag” shall mean a bag provided by a retail establishment to a customer at the point
of sale. Checkout bags shall not include bags, whether plastic or not, in which loose produce
or products are placed by the consumer to deliver such items to the point of sale or check out
arca of the store.

“Retail Establishment” shall mean any business facility that sells goods directly to the
consumer whether for or not for profit, including but not limited to, retail stores,
restaurants, pharmacies, convenience and grocery stores, liquor stores, and seasonal and
temporary businesses.

SECTION 2. {(a) Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, any retail
establishment which makes available checkout bags in the Town of Fairhaven shall charge
for each such bag equal to or greater than $0.10 per checkout bag, as established by
regulations to be duly promulgated by the Fairhaven Board of Health.

{b) All monies collected pursuant to this section shall be retained by the retail
establishment.

(c) Any charge for a checkout bag shall be separately stated on a receipt provided to the
customer at the time of sale and shall be identified as the “checkout bag charge” thereon.

SECTION 3. (a) The Health Agent for the Fairhaven Board of Health or his/her designee shall
have authority to enforce this law and any regulations promulgated there under, This law may
be enforced through any lawful means in law or in equity, including but not limited to,
noncriminal disposition pursuant to G.L. ¢. 40 § 21D and Article VI of the Town of Fairhaven
General Bylaws.

(b) The Fairhaven Board of Health may adopt and amend rules and regulations to
effectuate the purposes of this law.

SECTION 4. If any provision of this law is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the
other provisions shall be severable and shall not be affected thereby.

SECTION 5. This act shall take effect three months after its passage
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Petitioned by: Sustainability Committee

ARTICLE 41: ZONING BY-LAW CHANGE CHAPTER 198-33

To see if the town will vote to enact the following amendments to the Zoning Bylaw chapter
198-33 to change and/or add definitions from Massachusetts General Law to the definitions
section (198-33) and other locations within the Fairhaven Codebook where the revised
definitions reside.

Petitioned by: Planning Board

ARTICLE 42: ZONING BY-LAW CHANGE Chapter 198-29.6 - SOLAR
PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY FACILITIES

To see if the town will vote to amend the bylaws Chapter 198-29.6 — Solar Photovoltaic Energy
Facilities (SPEF) to allow solar power for export in the business and Industrial Districts as an
accessory use with a special permit.

Petitioned by: Planning Board
ARTICLE 43: DISCONTINUE PORTION DEAN ST & LIVESEY PARKWAY

To see if the town will vote to discontinue that portion of Dean Street east of its intersection with
Adams Street, and that portion of Livesey Parkway (formerly known as Spruce Street) south of
its intersection with Morton Street, both as appearing on assessors map 22A; or to take any other
action thereto:

Petitioned by: Board of Selectmen
ARTICLE 44: CHANGE TREE WARDEN FROM ELECTED TO APPOINTED
To see is the Town will vote to amend the town bylaws by adding the following section:

The tree warden shall be appointed by the Board of Selectmen, and shall exercise the duties of
tree warden and of insect pest control. Such tree warden shall be qualified by training and
experience in the field of arboriculture and licensed with the department of food and agriculture
in accordance with the provisions of section ten of chapter one hundred and thirty-two B of the
general laws. The term of such appointment shall be for three years.

Petitioned by: Board of Public Works
ARTICLE 45: TRANSFER FROM SURPLUS REVENUE-FY22

To see is the Town will vote to transfer a sum of money from Surplus Revenue for the reduction
of the tax levy, or take any other action relative thereto:

Petitioned by: Board of Selectmen
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ARTICLE 46: CITIZENS PETITION-CHANGE THE NAME OF THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN TO SELECT BOARD

To change the name of The Board of Selectmen to Select Board or take another action relative
thereto:

Petitioned by: Ann Richard

ARTICLE 47: CITIZENS PETITION-INCREASE BOARD OF SELECTMENT FROM
THREE (3) TO FIVE (5)

To see if the Town will vote to accept the following article:

In accordance with the Articles of the Constitution of the Commonwealth, the Fairhaven Board
of Selectmen is hereby directed to petition the General Court for passage of the act relative to the
Town Board of Selectmen, providing as follows:

Section 1: Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, the number of members on
the Fairhaven Board of Selectmen shall be increased from three (3) to five (5). The Board of
Selectmen shall annually elect a chairperson from among its members.

Section 2: At the first Annual Town Election to occur following the passage of this act by the
Massachusetts General Court, three (3) Selectmen shall be elected. The candidate receiving the
highest number of votes in that election shall serve a three (3) year term, the candidate receiving
the second highest number votes shall serve a two (2) year term and the candidate receiving the
third highest number of votes shall serve a one (1) year term. Thereafter, as the terms of
Selectmen expire, successors shall be elected for terms of three (3) years.

Section 3: This act shall take effect upon its passage.
Or take any other action relative thereto:
Petitioned by: Donna McKenna

ARTICLE 48: CITIZENS PETITION-CREATE A NEW NINE MEMBER CHARTER
COMMITTEE

To see if the Town will vote to create a new nine-member committee, to be known as the
Fairhaven Charter Committee, to be appointed by the Moderator, which committee shall be
charged with the review of all aspects of local government organization and structure, including,
without limitation, regional relationships and the operation of all Town departments, boards,
committees and commissions, elected and appointed, and make a report or recommendations to
the 2022 Annual Town Meeting, or such later town meeting as the Moderator may appro ve, with
the goal of presenting a proposed charter at the 2022 Annual Town Meeting, which special
legislation would be forwarded to the General Court for review and approval, in accordance with
the Home Rule Amendment, Section 8, and further to raise and appropriate or transfer from
available funds a sum of $10,000.00 to pay for the expenses of such Committee, or take any
other action relative thereto:

Petitioned by: Kyle Bueno
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ARTICLE 49: CITIZENS PETITION-ESTABLISH AN ETHICS COMMITTEE

To see if the Town shall vote to establish an ethics committee which shall be elected by the town
voters each year at the time of the Spring Election. This will be a three member board and
anyone serving on this board cannot have any dealings with the town from which they receive
financial gain. Members of this board cannot serve on any other board elected or appointed. For
the purposes of the first election the person with the highest vote total will serve for three years,
the person who receives the second highest vote total will serve for two years, and The Ethics
Board will have the following responsibilities and powers. They can investigate any conduct
which appears to be unethical or illegal. They can ask for the records from any town board which
would include minutes of meetings, e-mails, and any other correspondence which is asked that
pertains to their inquiry. If malfeasance is found they can go directly to town meeting with a
recommendation with options that include a: call for censure, a vote of no confidence, and an
impeachment of a town official. Furthermore as representatives of the town they can ask for the
Attorney General to investigate any activity which through their inquiry they found to be illegal
or in violation of the open meeting law. Furthermore if they feel that a committee or member of a
committee is operating in violation of the bylaws of the town they will contact that board and ask
that immediate action to remedy the violation be taken. Any citizen can file a complaint with the
Ethics Committee and if requested it will be mandated to be put on their agenda at the next
scheduled meeting. The committee will determine within thirty days what course of action if any
will be taken regarding the complaint. The Ethics Committee will also prepare a code of ethics to
be voted by the annual Spring town meeting in 2021. Or to take any other action relative thereto:

Or take any other action relative thereto:
Petitioned by: Mary Freire-Kellogg

ARTICLE 50: CITIZENS PETITION-ESTABLISH TERM LIMITS FOR ELECTED
BOARD MEMBERS

To see if the Town will vote to adopt into Town bylaw: Term Limits for Elected Board Members

We the registered voters of the Town of Fairhaven petition the town meeting to vote on the
Article to vote on the following Article. To see if the Town shall vote to establish-TERM
LIMITS for Elected Board Members.

We the registered voters of Fairhaven petition the town meeting to vote on the Article to see if
the Town shall vote to adopt a by law to be enacted immediately, commencing with the spring
election of 2021, and to take any other action relative thereto, as follows:

The term for any elected town official shall be limited to a maximum of two consecutive terms.
The total length of service for any elected official shall not exceed six years in any particular
office. Any elected official who has already served a maximum term of six years in any
particular office at the time such by-law is enacted, shall be prohibited from further serving in
the same position, for an additional term after the expiration of his/her current term of office.

To be voted by the annual Spring town meeting in 2021. Or to take any other action relative
thereto:

Or take any other action relative thereto:
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Petitioned by: Mary Freire-Kellogg

ARTICLE 51: CITIZENS PETITION-AMEND TOWN BYLAW CHAPTER 115
“RIGHT TO FARM”

To see if the Town will vote to amend Town bylaw Chapter 115 "Right to Farm, Section 3 and
Chapter 405 “ANIMALS” Section 2 to clarify the permitting requirement for animals is. Waived
on all parcels greater than 5 Acres in the Town of Fairhaven as these parcels are determined to be
zoned as Agricultural in Chapter 155 Section -3 in the current Fairhaven Bi-Laws.

Or take any other action relative thereto:
Petitioned by: Mary Freire-Kellogg

ARTICLE 52: CITIZENS PETITION-AMEND TOWN BYLAW CHAPTER 516
“RECALL ELECTIONS”

To see if the Town will vote to amend Town bylaw Chapter 516: "Recall
Elections", Section 2 to reduce the registered voter signature requirement from
twenty (20) percent to ten (10) percent as foliows:

"The recall petitions shall be returned and filed in the office of the Town
clerk within Thirty days following the date the petitions were issued,
signed by at least

10 percent of the total number of registered voters duly recorded on the
registration list of the Town clerk as of the preceding Town election.”

Or take any other action relative thereto:
Petitioned by: Mary Freire-Kellogg

ARTICLE 53: CITIZENS PETITION-AMEND TOWN BYLAW CHAPTER 516
“RECALL ELECTIONS”

To see if the Town will vote to amend Town bylaw Chapter 516: "Recall Elections, Section 2 to
reduce the registered voter signature requirement from twenty (20) percent to ten (10) percent,
and to increase the time frame for obtaining those signatures, as follows:

"The recall petitions shall be returned and filed in the office of the Town clerk within <5
fourteen-days-(30) thirty days following the date the petitions were issued, signed by at least (203
pereent-(10) percent of the total number of registered voters duly recorded on the registration list
of the Town clerk as of the preceding Town election."

Or take any other action relative thereto:
Petitioned by: John Farrell

ARTICLE 54: CITIZENS PETITION-REZONE PORTIONS OF 267 HUTTLESON
AVENUE

46






Petitioned by: Board of Selectmen

ARTICLE 58: LAND ACQUISITION NORTH STREET

To see if the town will raise and appropriate, borrow or transfer from available funds a
sum of money to purchase or take by eminent domain all or part of 0 North Steet,
further identified as Lot 43 on Assessors Map 15, or take any other

action relative thereto:

Petitioned by: Board of Selectmen
ARTICLE 59: OTHER BUSINESS

To act upon any other business which may legally come before this meeting,

And you are hereby directed to serve this warrant by posting an attested copy thereof on or near
the front or main entrance of the polling place in Precinct 1, Town Hall; and on or near the
entrance of the polling place in Precinct 2 and 3, Elizabeth 1. Hastings Middle School, School
Street; and on or near the entrance of the polling place in Precinct 4, Fire Station meeting room,
146 Washington Street; and on or near the front or main entrance of the polling place in Precinct
5 and 6, Recreation Center, 227 Huttleston Ave; seven days at least prior to the date of the
meeting.

HEREOF FAIL NOT, and make due return of this warrant to the Town Clerk at the time and
place of the meeting aforesaid.

Given under our hands this day of in the year two thousand twenty-one.

Selectmen of Fairhaven,

Daniel Freitas

Robert Espindola

Keith Silvia

A true copy, ATTEST:

Constable of Fairhaven
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